
EFGHIJKJLMNOOPJQFROHSTGUOFJTFVJWOXYHJZT[Y
 
CDEFGEHIJ789::9;7:<J=J>F?GJ@AHFGEHIJ7<97:9;7:< 

vDEF?EJxEJFHwp?EHJGJFGJxI@JKpDDJFEEHJGIJEIGADEGEJGJp?JEIwEDJAFuEJBpFED@HpFuJ?puFFG@DE?LJxEHIDEJFDDJIHJGJE 

IGJEDJGF?y?JF??puFEHJGIJxI@JxxJxI@DJF@GJIDpsEDJFDEJwp?pxDEJIFJxI@DJGF?yJAFuEtJSJpDEJEIGADEGpFuJGJp?JGF?yq 
ADEF?EJEF?@DEJGJFGJxI@J?EDEEGJGJEJEIDDEEGJF@GJIDpsEDJhTiJORJjkFYJlmnJomKpqJIDJxI@JGFxJFIGJxEJF??puFEH 

GJEJEIDDEEGJGF?y?t 

T\JLW]^^_J`abE MNO>PQJMPROPSJ>NTUlNUPJNCNmJCCJBOPUPTnCL 

BCEDEEGJFFGEJHDIGJGJEJHDIAJHIKFJGEF@L 

c\JW]adeEdJafe]^dQgEdJhaiJOR OEuEFG?rN@GJIDpsEHJCJFDGEDJCEJIID 
jkFYJlmGNnJomKpq 

BoIDJGEEJFpEFDJDEF?IF?qJADEF?EJDEr?EDEEG 
F@GJIDpsEDJFFGEJHDIGJGJEJHDIAJHIKF 

GEF@Lt 

M\JrQLedQWeJWJWLrJ^XJ_^WaeQ^` TvCJCCmJw 

VK\JLW]^^_JQ`X^dbaeQ^` 

vOzQNOvJNmmOPCC vM–TPJTlQRPO oN—JTlQRPO PQNz>JNmmOPCC 

:―8JCGtJTpEJIDF?

NwEF@E
 
TvqJTvJ:77;y
 

Vo\JZ]^`EJW^`eaWeJ`fbZEdJX^dJaXeEdJ]^fdLJEbEd[E`WQEL 

CIFGFEGJTFGE QpEJEDDEJUFDEIGGp 

npGDE mpDEEGIDJIHJ–AEDFGpIF? 

PGEDuEFExJvJIFEJT@GxEDJB‗‗‗r‗‗‗r 
‗‗‗‗L 

Y\JLW]^^_JYEZJarrdELLJhfd_q JGGA?I99JFDDEGJExDEKEJFDGEDtIDu9 

R\JraeEJ^XJQ`QeQa_JW]adeEd 7y9;7:; 

[\JraeEJXQdLeJ^ZE`ErJX^d 7<9;7:w 

Q`LedfWeQ^` 
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NK\JaZZd^\ErJLW]^^_JbQLLQ^`JhdY[YFGinJ`]Wr^EnJTFVJZkRRTPOJZ^EJTkGNOHU^YV 

iMNOOPiJOFPIq 

QzCCz–TJCnNnPQPTn 

MFDDEGJMExDEKJCJFDGEDJCEJIIDJp?JFFJE‘EEAGpIFFDqJHpwED?EJA@xDpEJEJFDGEDJ?EJIIDJGJFGJGEFEJE?JQIHEDF 

MExDEKJGIJEJpDHDEFJIHJFDDJxFEyuDI@FH?JFFHJADEAFDE?JGJEGJGIJxEJ?@EEE??H@DJuDIxFDJEpGpsEF?t 

No\J_E]JrELQ[`JE_EbE`eLJhdY[YFGinJ`]Wr^EnJTFVJZkRRTPOJZ^EJTkGNOHU^YVJiMNOOPi 

OFPIq 
’PvJmPCzUTJP>PQPTnCJBRDpEHJJEFHpFuJHIDDIKEHJxxJFJHE?EDpAGpIFJIHJEFEJJ’ExJmE?puFJPDEGEFG? 
B’mPLtJ’mP?JFDEJGJI?EJuEFEDFDJF?AEEG?JIHJGJEJ?EJIIDJGJFGJFDEJpFFIwFGpwEJIDJ@Fp‚@EJGIJGJEJ?EJIID‛? 
Gp??pIFJFFHJuIFD?qJFDEJEIDEJGIJGJEJ?EJIID‛?JIwEDFDDJHE?puFqJFFHJFDEJEDpGpEFDJGIJpG?J?@EEE??tJnJE 

HE?puFJEDEGEFG?JGFxJpFED@HEJFJ?AEEpHpEJEIFGEFGJFDEFJHIE@?“J@Fp‚@EJ?G@HEFGJAIA@DFGpIF?JGIJxE 

?EDwEH“J?AEEpHpEJEH@EFGpIFFDJADIuDFG?JIDJAEHFuIupEFDJFAADIFEJE?“J@Fp‚@EJEFDEFHFDqJ?EJEH@DEqJID 
EIFHpu@DFGpIF?JIHJ?G@HEFG?JFFHJ?GFHH“JFFH9IDJpFFIwFGpwEJIDuFFpsFGpIFFDJ?GD@EG@DE?JFFHJ?x?GEG?t 

”FDpFxDEJ: OE?EFDEJrRF?EHJP>NJzF?GD@EGpIFJFFHJmpHHEDEFGpFGpIF 

PFuDp?JJ>FFu@FuEJNDG?JBP>NLJpF?GD@EGpIFJp?JDIIGEHJpFJGKI
?I@DEE?IJEFDEH@DDxJEJI?EFqJDE?EFDEJrxF?EHJpF?GD@EGpIFFD
>FFu@FuEJNDG?JADIuDFG?JDpyEJCIDEJ’FIKDEHuEqJSpD?IF
o@FHFGpIF?qJFFHJnJpFyCPOCNqJFFHJEFEJJ?G@HEFG‛?JIKF
DEFDFpFuJFEEH?tJNDDJ?G@HEFG?JGFyEJGJEJTSPNJQNvqJFFHJKJpDE
EwEDxJ?G@HEFGJ?AEFH?JGpGEJEwEDxJHFxJKIDypFuJpFJKJIDErEDF??
>FFu@FuEJNDG?JADIuDFG?qJGJExJFD?IJuEGJGpGEJGIJKIDyJGJDI@uJ
FJE@?GIGpsEHJ>FFu@FuEJNDG?JpF?GD@EGpIFFDJADIuDFGqJxF?EHJIF
GJEpDJQNvJAEDHIDGFFEEqJFFHJHEwEDIAEHJFFHJDEwp?EHJDEu@DFDDx
xxJGJEpDJGEFEJEDtJCG@HEFG?JKIDyJpFJDEFHpFuJ?GFGpIF?JGI
ADFEGpEEJGJEJ?ypDD?JGJEpDJQNvJ?EIDE?JpFHpEFGEJFEEH
?GDEFuGJEFpFutJnJExJHIJGJp?JGJDI@uJJpFGEDwEFGpIFJpFJ?GFDD
uDI@A?qJFFHJGJDI@uJJpFHEAEFHEFGJADFEGpEEJBwpFJCIGAF??
>EFDFpFuJIDJKpGJJAEFEpDrFFHrAFAEDJKIDyLtJNHwFFEEHJ?G@HEFG?
FD?IJ@?EJGpGEJGIJE‘GEFHJFFHJHEEAEFJ@FHED?GFFHpFuJ„JpFJ?GFDD
uDI@AJADI‟EEG?qJFFH9IDJKpGJJCIGAF??J>EFDFpFut 

”FDpFxDEJ; OE?EFDEJrRF?EHJQFGJJzF?GD@EGpIFJFFHJmpHHEDEFGpFGpIFJ 

QFGJEGFGpE?JpF?GD@EGpIFJp?JxF?EHJIFJDE?EFDEJrxF?EHJxE?G
ADFEGpEEJADIuDFG?qJFFHJp?J?EJEH@DEHJGIJFDDIKJHIDJHDE‘pxDE
DE?AIF?EJGIJpFHpwpH@FDJ?G@HEFG?‛JFEEH?JFFHJEJFDDEFuE?t
CG@HEFG?J@?EJP@DEyFJQFGJJpFJKJIDErEDF??JpF?GD@EGpIFt
CG@HEFG?JFD?IJKIDyJpFJGFGJJ?GFGpIF?JGIJADFEGpEEJGJEJ?ypDD?
GJEpDJQNvJ?EIDE?JpFHpEFGEJFEEHJ?GDEFuGJEFpFutJnJExJHIJGJp?
GJDI@uJJpFGEDwEFGpIFJpFJ?GFDDJuDI@A?qJFFHJGJDI@uJ
pFHEAEFHEFGJADFEGpEEJBwpFJCIGAF??J>EFDFpFuJIDJKpGJJAEFEpDr
FFHrAFAEDJKIDyLtJNHwFFEEHJ?G@HEFG?JFD?IJ@?EJGpGEJGIJE‘GEFH
FFHJHEEAEFJ@FHED?GFFHpFuJ„JpFJ?GFDDJuDI@AJADI‟EEG?qJFFH9ID
KpGJJCIGAF??J>EFDFpFut 
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”FDpFxDEJw C@AAIDGJHIDJFGrDp?yJCG@HEFG?J 

SEJFDEJEIGGpGGEHJGIJGEEGpFuJGJEJHpwED?EJFEEH?JIHJI@D
?G@HEFG?JFFHJEF?@DpFuJGJFGJFDDJ?G@HEFG?JDEEEpwEJE‚@FDJFEEE??
GIJEH@EFGpIFtJSJEFJFJ?G@HEFGJEFDIDD?qJKEJHIDDIKJFDDJ?GFGEJFFH
HEHEDFDJDEu@DFGpIF?JpFwIDwpFuJpHEFGpHpEFGpIFqJADIuDFGGpFuJFFH
F??E??GEFGtJSEJFDEJEIGGpGGEHJGIJEH@EFGpFuJ?G@HEFG?JpFJGJE
DEF?GJDE?GDpEGpwEJEFwpDIFGEFGtJSEJADIwpHEJ?@AAIDG?JHID
?G@HEFG?JGIJFEEE??JGJEJEIDEJE@DDpE@D@GJpFJGJEpDJEDF??E?qJJFwE
E‚@FDJFEEE??JGIJEIFGEFGqJFFHJDEEEpwEJ?@AAIDG?JI@G?pHEJIHJGJE
EDF??DIIGJF?JFEEHEHtJSEJJFwEJFJOE?AIF?EJGIJzFGEDwEFGpIF
BOGzLJADIEE??JGIJpHEFGpHxJ?GD@uuDpFuJ?G@HEFG?JGJDI@uJJHFGF
FFFDx?p?JFFHJADIwpHEJGJEGJEwpHEFEErxF?EHJpFGEDwEFGpIF?tJNDD
GEFEJED?JDEEEpwEJIFuIpFuJGDFpFpFuJDEuFDHpFuJGJEJEH@EFGpIFJIH
?G@HEFG?JKpGJJ?AEEpFDJFEEH?tJSEJFD?IJJFwEJFJDIFuEDJ?EJIID
HFxtJnJp?JpFEDEF?EHJGpGEJJEDA?J?G@HEFG?qJE?AEEpFDDxJGJI?EJFGr
Dp?yqJGEEGJADIHpEpEFExJ?GFFHFDH?tJnIJH@DGJEDJ?@AAIDGJ?G@HEFG?
KJIJFDEJ?GD@uuDpFuqJEwEDxJ?@GGEDJKEJJIDHJFJ?@GGED
FEFHEGpEJpFGEDwEFGpIFJADIuDFGtJ 

”FDpFxDEJ― zGGED?pwEJMExDEKJzF?GD@EGpIF 

SEJADIwpHEJpGGED?pwEJMExDEKJDFFu@FuEJpF?GD@EGpIFJEwEDx
HFxJGIJFDDJ?G@HEFG?tJMExDEKJDFFu@FuEJpF?GD@EGpIFJp?JHEDpwEDEH
GJDI@uJJGJEJvDIHpEpEFExJQIHEDJIHJpF?GD@EGpIFJKJpEJJp?JFDpuFEH
KpGJJxE?GJADFEGpEE?JHIE@GEFGEHJxxJGJEJNGEDpEFFJCI@FEpDJIF
GJEJnEFEJpFuJIHJoIDEpuFJ>FFu@FuE?JBNCnzo>LtJCG@HxpFu
QIHEDFJMExDEKJIHHED?J?G@HEFG?JGJEJIAAIDG@FpGxJGIJDEFDFJFFH
@FHED?GFFHJFJ?EEIFHJDFFu@FuEJFFHJGIJKpGFE??JpG?JuDIKpFu
@?EJFEDI??JwFDpEHJEIGG@FpGpE?tJOE?EFDEJJAIpFG?JGIJGJE
FHwFFGFuE?JEJpDHDEFJuFpFJKJEFJGJExJxEupFJGJEJ?G@HxJIHJF
HIDEpuFJDFFu@FuEJFGJFFJEFDDxJFuEqJFIGJDEF?GJIHJKJpEJJp?JGJEpD
HEwEDIAGEFGJF?JxpDpFu@FDqJxprDpGEDFGEqJFFHJEDI??rE@DG@DFDDx
EIGAEGEFGqJxEGGEDJADEAFDpFuJGJEGJGIJxEJFEGpwEJAFDGpEpAFFG?
pFJGJEJuDIxFDJEIGG@FpGxtJ 

”FDpFxDEJ† CP> 

CP>Jp?JFJGF‟IDJEIGAIFEFGJIHJI@DJEH@EFGpIFFDJGIHEDtJCP>Jp?
GJEJADIEE??JGJDI@uJJKJpEJJEJpDHDEFJFFHJFH@DG?JFE‚@pDEJFFH
FAADxJGJEJyFIKDEHuEqJFGGpG@HE?qJFFHJ?ypDD?JFEEE??FDxJGI
@FHED?GFFHJFFHJGFFFuEJEGIGpIF?qJ?EGJFFHJFEJpEwEJAI?pGpwE
uIFD?qJHEEDJFFHJ?JIKJEGAFGJxJHIDJIGJED?qJE?GFxDp?JJFFH
GFpFGFpFJAI?pGpwEJDEDFGpIF?JpA?qJFFHJGFyEJDE?AIF?pxDE
HEEp?pIF?tJOE?EFDEJJ?JIK?JGJFGJCP>JGFGGED?JHIDJ?G@HEFG
?@EEE??qJHIDJxIGJJGJEJCP>JEIGAEGEFEpE?JGJEG?EDwE?JFFH
FEFHEGpEJI@GEIGE?t 

”FDpFxDEJy vDIHE??pIFFDJmEwEDIAGEFG 

OEED@pGpFuJFFHJDEGFpFpFuJJpuJJ‚@FDpGxJDEFHED?JpAJFFHJ?GFHHJFFH
EIFGpF@pFuJGIJx@pDHJGJEpDJDEFHED?JpAJFFHJpF?GD@EGpIFFD 
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EFAFEpGpE?JFDEJEDpGpEFDJGIJEF?@DEJ?@EEE??H@DJ?G@HEFG
I@GEIGE?tJ–@DJGIHEDJIHJ‟IxJEGxEHHEHJADIHE??pIFFD
HEwEDIAGEFGJEGxDFEE?JGJEJEIFEEAGJGJFGJvmJG@?GJxE 
pFGEuDFGEHJGJDI@uJI@GJGJEJ?EJIIDJHFxtJnJEJ?EJIIDJDEFHED?JpA
KIDyJIFJFJHFpDxJxF?p?JEIFEJpFuJGJEJpF?GD@EGpIFFDJ?GFHHJFFH
ADIwpHpFuJGDFpFpFuJFFHJu@pHFFEEJpFJGJEJKFxJGEFEJED?JKIDy
KpGJJFDDJDEFDFED?JpFED@HpFuJP>>?qJCSmqJFGJDp?yJ?G@HEFG?JFFH
FEEEDEDFGEHJDEFDFED?tJSEJJFwEJ?EGJF?pHEJDE?I@DEE?JFFHJGpGE
pFJGJEJ?EJIIDJHFxJHIDJGEFEJED?JGIJEFuFuEJpFJDEHDEEGpwE
ADFEGpEEqJpFHpwpH@FDJADFFFpFuJFFHJEIDDFxIDFGpIFJKpGJ
EIDDEFu@E?tJ–@DJGEFEJED?JFFHJ?EJIIDJDEFHED?JpAJFD?IJDEEEpwE
IFuIpFuJ?@AAIDGJHDIGJI@DJCJFDGEDJQFFFuEGEFGJ–DuFFpsFGpIFq
MExDEKJA@xDpEqJpFED@HpFuJE@DDpE@D@GJHEwEDIAGEFGqJvmq
DEFHED?JpAJEFAFEpGxJx@pDHpFuqJGEEJFpEFDJF??p?GFFEEqJFFHJIGJED
ADIuDFGGFGpEJuDFFGJIAAIDG@FpGpE?tJ 

”FDpFxDEJ8 BTIJDE?AIF?EL 

”FDpFxDEJ< BTIJDE?AIF?EL 

”FDpFxDEJ‡ BTIJDE?AIF?EL 

”FDpFxDEJ:7 BTIJDE?AIF?EL 

U\Je^ea_JE`d^__bE`eJ^`Jjf`E 

lmnJomKp 

wy< 

b\J[darELJLEd\ErJQ`JLW]^^_J]EadJomKcdKp 

CJEEyJFDDJGJFGJFAADx 

UDFHE?JCEDwEH ’qJ:qJ;qJwqJ―qJ† 

`K\Jr^ELJe]EJLW]^^_ vE? 
W^`edaWeJYQe]JaJW]adeEdJ^d 

ErfWaeQ^`a_Jba`a[EbE`e 

^d[a`QgaeQ^`a 

J 
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`o\J`abEJ^XJWb^WEb^Ja`rJarrdELL
 

TNQPJ–oJCQ–9PQ– MExDEKJv@xDpE
 

vMvCzCN>JCnOPPnJNmmOPCC
 

Cznv
 

CnNnP
 

•zvJC–mP
 

PQNz>JNmmOPCC
 

PK\JXaWQ_QeQEL 

mIE?JGJEJ?EJIIDJGFpFGFpFJIDJIAEDFGEJG@DGpADEJ?pGE?‣ 

TIqJ‟@?GJIFEJ?pGEt 

Po\JLW]^^_JLQeEL 

vDEF?EJDp?GJGJEJ?pGE?JKJEDEJGJEJ?EJIIDJKpDDJIAEDFGEJHIDJGJEJ@AEIGpFuJ?EJIIDJxEFDt 

vJx?pEFD
NHHDE?? 

CpGEJ: :―8JCGt 
B?FGE TpEJIDF?
F? NwEF@E 
ADpGFDx TEKJvIDyqJTv
?pGEL :77;y 

CpGEJ; 

CpGEJw 

vJIFE
 
T@GxED
 

mp?GDpEG9CCm 

TvCJCCmJw 

UDFHE? 
CEDwEHJFG 
CpGEJB’r†qJyr‡q
EGEtL 

’r† 

OEEEpwE?
OEFGFD 
N??p?GFFEE 

vE? 

OEFGFD 
N??p?GFFEE
HIDJSJpEJ
UDFHE?JBKDpGE
T9NJpH
FAADpEFxDEL 

;ry 
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PoT\JZPYTiYJeHOXUVYJGNYJMOFGTMGJUFROHSTGUOFJROHJLUGYJK\
 

TFGE SIDyJvJIFE NDGEDFFGEJvJIFE PGFpDJNHHDE?? 

CEJIID QEuJFFJRFDDpI? >EFHED 

–AEDFGp
IFFD lD?@DFJ”EDpEFpF 
>EFHED 

CIGADpF
FEE QpEJEDDEJUFDEIGGp 
CIFGFEG 

CIGADFp
FG QFDyJopFy 
CIFGFEG 

mNCN 
CIIDHpF CJDIGpGJ>pAGIF 
FGID 

SK\JaHYJTFIJiUGYiJUFJMOdPOMTGYV 

ieTMYaJQRJIYinJePYTiYJeHOMYYVJGO 

GNYJFYfGJgkYiGUOF\ 

TI 

QXJ_^WaeErJQ`JZdQ\aeEJLZaWEJQ`J`]WJ^dJrQLedQWeLJ^feLQrEJ`]W 

Sl\JfePOTVJTJMkHHYFGJWYHGURUMTGYJORJ^MMkeTFMIJhW^^qJROHJYTMNJiMNOOPJiUGYJGNTG 
UiJPOMTGYVJUFJeHUXTGYJieTMYJUFJ`]WJOHJPOMTGYVJOkGiUVYJORJ`]W\JEfMYeGJROHJiMNOOPiJUF 

VUiGHUMGJieTMYJhMOdPOMTGUOFJieTMYqnJiMNOOPJSkiGJeHOXUVYJTJMOeIJORJGNYJTFFkTPJRUHY 

UFieYMGUOFJHYeOHG\ 

LUGYJKJWYHGURUMTGYJORJ^MMkeTFMIJhW^^q 

JGGA?I99Fx?EHrE?IrDEAIDG?tHD@pHDEwpEKtEIG9DE?A9:8†††w;:9xovn—CyH”x9 

LUGYJKJXUHYJQFieYMGUOFJdYeOHG 

JGGA?I99Fx?EHrE?IrDEAIDG?tHD@pHDEwpEKtEIG9DE?A9:8†††w;:9FR․GG‚‘N’l9 

LUGYJoJWYHGURUMTGYJORJ^MMkeTFMI 

BTIJDE?AIF?EL 

92324
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LUGYJoJXUHYJQFieYMGUOFJdYeOHG 

BTIJDE?AIF?EL 

LUGYJlJWYHGURUMTGYJORJ^MMkeTFMI 

BTIJDE?AIF?EL 

LUGYJlJXUHYJQFieYMGUOFJdYeOHG 

BTIJDE?AIF?EL 

FK\JYYHYJGNYHYJTFIJHYXUiUOFiJGO vE? 
GNYJiMNOOPhiJMNTHGYHJVkHUF[JGNY 

omKcdKpJiMNOOPJIYTHaJhZPYTiY 

UFMPkVYJTeeHOXYVJOHJeYFVUF[ 

STGYHUTPJTFVJFOFdSTGYHUTP 
MNTHGYHJHYXUiUOFiq\ 

Fo\JLkSSTHIJORJWNTHGYHJdYXUiUOFi 

CFGEuIDxJBCEDEEGJRE?G CAEEpHpEJOEwp?pIF mFGEJNAADIwEHJxx mFGEJNAADIwEHJxx 
mE?EDpAGpIFL B:†7JKIDHJDpGpGL R–nJBpHJFAADpEFxDEL N@GJIDpsEDJBpH

FAADpEFxDEL 

OEwp?EHJNEFHEGpE
>EFHED?JpAJCGD@EG@DE
„JSpGJJF@GJIGJDpsED
FAADIwFDqJxEupFFpFu
pFJHFDDJ;7:8qJGJEJmCz
AI?pGpIFJKpDDJxE
DEADFEEHJKpGJJGKI
NEFHEGpEJmEFF?qJIFE
HIDJuDFHE?J’r;JFFH 
IFEJHIDJuDFHE?Jwr†t 

: 
CJFFuEJpF
IDuFFpsFGpIFFD
?GD@EG@DE 

nJEJNEFHEGpEJmEFF?
KpDDJHIE@?
ADEHIGpFFFGDxJIF
EIFEJpFuJFFH
HEwEDIApFuJGEFEJED?
GIJEF?@DE 
EIF?p?GEFGDxJEHHEEGpwE
GEFEJpFuJHIDJxIGJ
uEFEDFDJFFHJ?AEEpFD
EH@EFGpIFJADIuDFG?t
nJEJNEFHEGpEJmEFF?
KpDDJ?@AEDwp?EJFFH
EwFD@FGEJGEFEJED? 
KpGJJGJEJ?@AAIDGJIH 

::9;<9;7:8
 

:2324
 



; 

w 

― 

† 

O\J`TSYJTFVJZOiUGUOFJOR
 

GJEJM–CJpFJGFFFupFu
GJEJFHGpFp?GDFGpwE
DE?AIF?pxpDpGpE?t
NHGEDJH@E 
EIF?pHEDFGpIFqJ?EJIID
DEFHED?JpAJFDIFuJKpGJ
GJEJxIFDHJIHJGD@?GEE?q
HEGEDGpFEHJGJFGJGJE
DEwp?EHJFEFHEGpE
DEFHED?JpAJ?GD@EG@DE
KpDDJFDDIKJHIDJuDEFGED
GEFEJEDJ?@AAIDGq
EDEFDEDJDI@GE 
FEEI@FGFxpDpGxJHID
pF?GD@EGpIFFD
I@GEIGE?JFFH 
GF‘pGpsEJGJE
pF?GD@EGpIFFD
E‘AEDGp?EJIHJGJEJ?GFHHt 

QpEJEDDEJUFDEIGGpqJmpDEEGIDJIHJCEJIIDJ–AEDFGpIF?JTvJOEupIF
 

QFVUXUVkTPhiqJYNOJWOSePYGYVJGNUi 

aFFkTPJdYeOHG\ 

e\J^kHJiU[FTGkHYiJh]YTVJORJLMNOOPJTFVJZOTHVJZHYiUVYFGqJcYPOiJTGGYiGJGNTGJTPPJORJGNY 

UFROHSTGUOFJMOFGTUFYVJNYHYUFJUiJGHkGNRkPJTFVJTMMkHTGYJTFVJGNTGJGNUiJMNTHGYHJiMNOOPJUi 

UFJMOSePUTFMYJiUGNJTPPJTieYMGiJORJUGiJMNTHGYHnJTFVJiUGNJTPPJeYHGUFYFGJXYVYHTPnJLGTGYnJTFV 

POMTPJPTiinJHY[kPTGUOFinJTFVJHkPYi\JYYJkFVYHiGTFVJGNTGJURJTFIJUFROHSTGUOFJUFJTFIJeTHG 
ORJGNUiJHYeOHGJUiJROkFVJGOJNTXYJcYYFJVYPUcYHTGYPIJSUiHYeHYiYFGYVnJGNTGJiUPPJMOFiGUGkGY 

[HOkFViJROHJGNYJHYXOMTGUOFJORJOkHJMNTHGYH\JWNYM`J]ELJURJIOkJT[HYYJTFVJGNYFJkiYJGNY 
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APPENDIX A-3 


FIRE SAFETY AND EVACUATION PLAN FORMAT 


BUILDINGS WITH INTERIOR FIRE ALARM SYSTEMS 


Interior Fire Alarm Systems 

Index of Items in the FSP for: 147 Saint Nicholas Avenue 
New York NY 10026 

Note: 

Arrange sequence of items submitted with this plan in the same order as this Index.
 

1. FSP format IFA - Appendix A-3 

2. FSP IFA Evacuation Routes - Appendix A-3 Table 1 

3. Hotel BIC Format - Appendix B-3 for IFA 

4. Building Profile - Appendix D for IFA 

5. Copy of the most recent: C of O or copy of valid T C O or copy of Schedule A 
(Include only the copy that applies) 

6. List all other attachments chronologically. 

7. One Compact Disc (CD) 

The Fire Safety and Evacuation Plan may make reference at any point to additional accompanying 
attachments, tables and/or other supporting information or documentation, including the 
attachments and tables prescribed by the format for various Fire Safety and Evacuation Plan 
information. 

A copy of the Fire Safety and Evacuation Plan, Building Information Card and floor plans shall be 
kept on the premises. 

Questions regarding the format and submission of the Fire Safety and Evacuation Plan may be 
directed to the Emergency Planning and Preparedness Unit of the Bureau of Fire Prevention at 
Fire Department Headquarters. 
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1. Owner's Certification 

147 Saint Nicholas AvenueI hereby certify that this Fire Safety and Evacuation Plan for: New York NY 10026 
is in compliance with the requirements of FC404.2.1 and R404-01. This Fire Safety and Evacuation Plan sets 
forth the circumstances and procedures for the sheltering in place, in-building relocation, partial evacuation or 
evacuation of building occupants in response to a fire. 

Ricky Gautier 

Print Name Date

   Owner's Signature 

“Owner” is defined in R404-01(b) as “the fee owner or lessee of the building, or other person or entity having charge thereof.” 
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2. Building Information 

2.1 	 Complete building address: 147 Saint Nicholas Avenue  New York NY 10026 

2.2 Building Owner or managing agent's Information: 

2.2.1 	Name: DBI Projects 

2.2.2 Mailing Address: 

2.2.3 	 Building Identification Number (BIN): 

2.2.4 Telephone number( 

2.2.5 Cellular telephone number(s): 

2.2.6 Fax number(s): 

2.2.7 E-mail Address: 

2.2.8 Contact Name: Ricky Gautier  

2.3. Height of building [ft]:  72 Stories above grade:6 Stories below grade:1 

2.4 Lawful use and occupancy: 

Educational - Class E new code 

2.5 	Signage: 
2.5.1 	 Elevator lobbies. Floor number signs, elevator bank designation signs, and floor diagram signs 

(showing the route of egress and car identification at the "designate level") have been provided 
at elevator lobbies in compliance with the requirements of the New York City Building Code. 
Owner/Managing Agent certifies compliance. 

2.5.2 	 Stairwells. Stairwell identification signs have been posted on the corridor sides of stairwell 
doors and floor number signs have been posted on the stairwell side of stairwell doors in 
compliance with the requirements of the New York City Building Code. 
Owner/Managing Agent certifies compliance. 

2.5.3 	 Guest room doors. Signs with floor diagrams have been posted on or immediately adjacent to 
every required egress door from each guest room in compliance with the requirements of the 
FC408.8.1. 
Owner/Managing Agent certifies compliance. 

3. Fire Safety Staff Designations, Duties, and Responsibilities 

3.1 	 Fire drill conductor. Indicate that a person holding a certificate of fitness as fire drill conductor will conduct 
fire drills as required by FC405.2, and that such drills consistent with and reinforced the fire safety and 
evacuation instructions listed in Section 4 of this plan. 

Name of person holding the C of F: Ursula Vericain 

C of F Number: 89510978	 Expiration Date:09/01/2019 
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Revised Date: 

If contractor, provide name, address, contact name, and phone number 
N/A 

4. 	 Fire Safety and Evacuation Instructions 

4.1 Evacuation of Building in the Event of Fire 

4.1.1 	 Any person discovering fire, smoke or other fire condition should without delay cause 
the transmission of a fire alarm by calling 911 or activating a fire alarm box. 

4.1.2 	 Upon activation of the building's fire alarm system, all building occupants shall 
immediately evacuate of the building in accordance with this plan, if able to do so 
safely. 

4.1.3 	 The following factors shall be expeditiously determined and considered in implementing the fire 
safety and evacuation plan in the event of a fire in the building: 

4.1.3.1 Location of the fire (floors and areas on floors). 

4.1.3.2 Severity of the fire. 

4.1.3.3 Floors affected by smoke conditions. 

4.1.3.4 Stairwells affected by smoke conditions. 

4.2 Use of Elevators. Elevators shall not be used to implement the fire safety and evacuation plan, except when 
authorized by firefighting personnel. 

4.3 Procedures for identifying building occupants who require assistance, and the procedures for providing 
such assistance:

Building occupants who require assistance have been identified in advance and are instructed 
to contact management for assistance in an evacuation. A list of occupants who require 

Procedures:	 assistance is prepared and maintained at the 2nd Floor Office. Elevators shall not be used for 
evacuation of special needs persons, all evacuations shall be done through stairwells to the 
street 

5. 	 Building Maintenance Program 
This program should address maintenance required and personnel responsible for inspecting testing and 
otherwise overseeing the maintenance of the following fire protection systems and the other equipment and 
operations affecting building fire safety. Sections referring to a list of certified companies can be found by 
visiting the fire prevention section of the FDNY website. 

5.1 	 Sprinkler and Standpipe Systems 

Sprinkler System 

5.1.1 	 Maintenance required for Sprinkler System shall Comply with FC 903.5 (referencing National 
Fire Protection Association Standard 25), and RCNY 3-901.2 (maintenance of sprinkler system 
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pressure tanks and periodic testing of fire department connections). 

5.1.2 	 Responsible personnel must possess an FDNY issued Certificate of Fitness S-12. Levels of 
inspection, maintenance, and testing that can be performed by the certificate of fitness holder are 
dependent upon their other credentials. Consult the Certificate of Fitness section of the FDNY 
homepage to find valid legacy and retroactive Certificate of Fitnesses. 

The above requirements have been met and are available on-site at all times for review by FDNY 
Personnel. Mark appropriate response: 

✔  Yes No N/A

Standpipe System 


5.1.3 	 Maintenance required for Standpipe System shall Comply with FC905.12 (referencing National 
Fire Protection Association Standard 25), and RCNY 3-905.01 (including maintenance of 
standpipe system pressure reducing devices, and periodic testing of fire department 
connections). 

5.1.4 	 Responsible Personnel must possess a FDNY issued Certificate of Fitness S-13 or S-14 for a 
multi-zone system (premise related). Levels of inspection, maintenance, and testing that can be 
performed by the certificate of fitness holder are dependent upon their other credentials. Consult 
the Certificate of Fitness section of the FDNY homepage to find valid legacy and retroactive 
Certificate of Fitnesses. 

The above requirements have been met and are available on-site at all times for review by FDNY 
Personnel. Mark appropriate response: 

✔  Yes No N/A
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5.2 	 Fire Alarm Systems 

5.2.2 	 Maintenance required. Comply with FC 907.20 (referencing National Fire Protection 
Association Standard 72), and 3 RCNY Chapter 9 (including fire alarm record keeping and 
smoke detector maintenance, testing and record keeping). 

5.2.3 	 Fire Alarm System Testing, Maintenance & Supervision: 

5.2.3.1 The 	testing and maintenance servicing technician must possess an S-98 
Certificate of Fitness. 

5.2.3.2 	The Certificate of Fitness holder must be associated with a certified company. 
Consult the current list of FDNY CERTIFIED COMPANIES for a Fire Alarm 
System Technician (S-97) “Approved Principal for Fire Alarm System 
Technician List”. This list can be found within the Certificate of Fitness section 
of the FDNY homepage. 

5.2.3.3 The supervision must be done by an S-95 Certificate of Fitness holder. 

5.2.4 	 Smoke detector maintenance: 

5.2.4.1 Servicing technician must possess an S-78 citywide Certificate of Fitness or F-78 
premise related Certificate of Fitness. Consult the Certificate of Fitness section of 
the FDNY homepage to find valid legacy and retroactive Certificate of Fitnesses. 

5.2.4.2 The Certificate of Fitness holder must be associated with a certified company. 
Consult the current list of FDNY CERTIFIED COMPANIES for an Smoke 
Detector Maintenance “Approved Companies”. This list can be found within the 
Certificate of Fitness section of the FDNY homepage. 

The above requirements have been met and are available on-site at all times for review by FDNY 
Personnel. Mark appropriate response: 

✔  Yes No N/A
5.3 	 Commercial Cooking Equipment Systems 

5.3.1 	 Maintenance required. Comply with FC 904.11.6.4 with reference to NFPA 96. 

5.3.2 	 Responsible personnel must possess an F-64 Certificate of Fitness premise related or a W-64 
Certificate of Fitness citywide. 

5.3.3 	 Responsible personnel must possess a W-64 Certificate of Fitness which is associated with a 
certified company. Consult the current list of FDNY CERTIFIED COMPANIES for an 
Commercial Kitchen Exhaust System “Approved Companies” 

The above requirements have been met and are available on-site at all times for review by FDNY 
Personnel. Mark appropriate response: 

✔  Yes No N/A
5.4 	 Decorations/ Draperies and Curtains in Public Areas 
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5.4.1 Maintenance required. Comply with FC 805 and 3 RCNY 805-01 (flame-resistant decorations). 

Reference NFPA 101, 701, & 703. 

5.4.2 Responsible personnel must possess a C-15 Certificate of Fitness. 


The above requirements have been met and are available on-site at all times for review by FDNY 

Personnel. Mark appropriate response: 


✔  Yes
 No N/A
5.5 	 Portable fire extinguishers 

5.5.1 	 Maintenance required. Comply with FC 906.2.1 (referencing National Fire Protection 
Association Standard 10). 

5.5.2 Responsible personnel must possess a W-96 Certificate of Fitness which is associated with a 
certified company. Consult the current list of FDNY CERTIFIED COMPANIES for an 
Approved Portable Fire Extinguisher Full Service and Sales. This list can be found within the 
Certificate of Fitness section of the FDNY homepage. 

The above requirements have been met and are available on-site at all times for review by FDNY 
Personnel. Mark appropriate response: 

✔  Yes No N/A
5.6 	 Emergency power systems 

5.6.1 	 Maintenance required. Comply with FC 604.3 and FC 604.4 (referencing National Fire 
Protection Association Standards 110 and 111). 

5.6.2 Responsible personnel listed under FC 604.5. 


The above requirements have been met and are available on-site at all times for review by FDNY 

Personnel. Mark appropriate response: 


✔  Yes
 No N/A
5.7 	 Phase I and Phase II elevator operations 

5.7.1 	 Maintenance required. Comply with FC 607.5 


5.7.2 Responsible personnel. 


The above requirements have been met and are available on-site at all times for review by FDNY 

Personnel. Mark appropriate response: 


✔  Yes
 No N/A
5.8	 Smoke control systems 

5.8.1 	 Maintenance required. Comply with FC909.1.1. Refer to NFPA 92, 92A, & 92B for additional 
information. 

5.8.2 	 Responsible personnel. 

The above requirements have been met and are available on-site at all times for review by FDNY 
Personnel. Mark appropriate response: 
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 Yes  No	 ✔  N/A 
5.9 	 Means of egress 

5.9.1 	 Maintenance required. Comply with FC 1027. Refer to NFPA 101 & 101B for additional 
information. 

5.9.2 Responsible personnel. 


The above requirements have been met and are available on-site at all times for review by FDNY 

Personnel. Mark appropriate response: 


✔  Yes
 No N/A
5.10 	 Hot work operations 

5.10.1 Maintenance required. 	Comply with FC Chapter 26 and 3 RCNY 2605-01 (use of a flammable 
gas in citywide hot work operations). 

5.10.2 	The responsible personnel shall ensure 

5.10.2.1 	Hot work operations are conducted by an individual holding a G-60 Certificate of 
Fitness for torch use of flammable gases for hot work operations. 

5.10.2.2 	A fire watch shall be conducted by an F-60 Certificate of Fitness holder during and at 
least 30 minutes after all hot work operations are complete. 

The above requirements have been met and are available on-site at all times for review by FDNY 
Personnel. Mark appropriate response: 

✔  Yes No N/A
5.11 	 Accumulation of rubbish and combustible waste 

5.11.1 Maintenance required. Comply with FC304. 

5.11.2 	Responsible personnel. 

The above requirements have been met and are available on-site at all times for review by FDNY 
Personnel. Mark appropriate response: 

✔  Yes No N/A
6. 	 Floor Plans. 

Annexed to this plan are floor plans complying with the requirements of R404_01(d)(7). 
Egress route / Evacuation route shall be shown with the permanent partitions which create the corridors. Corridors, exit access, fire  
barriers and areas of refuge required to be depicted on such plan shall be defined as set forth in Sections 702 and 1002 of the 2008  

 Building Code. 

7. 	 Sprinkler and Standpipe System Riser Diagram. 
Annexed to this plan is a single sprinkler and standpipe system riser diagram complying with the requirements 
of R404_01(d)(7)(C). 

8. 	 Building Information Card. 
Annexed to this Fire Safety and Evacuation Plan, as Appendix B-1, is the Building Information Card 
complying with the requirements of R404-01(k)(1)(A). 
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The Building Information Card (BIC) must conform to the format of Appendix B-3. 

9. 	 Building Profile. 
Annexed to this Fire Safety and Evacuation Plan, as Appendix D, is the Building Profile 
complying with the requirements of R404-01(k)(1)(B). 
The Building Profile must conform to the format of Appendix D. Provide all of the information requested, without reference to other  
sections of the plan or the Building Information Card, even if the information requested is duplicative. 
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Fire Safety and Evacuation Plan (Appendix A-3) 

Buildings With Interior Fire Alarm Systems
 

Table 1
 
EVACUATION ROUTES
 

Floor Evacuation route and exit discharge location (e.g. stairwell A to 1st floor 42nd Street exit) 

Cellar 
Primary: Stair B to 1st Floor exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

Alternative: Stair A to 1st Floor exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

1st 
Primary: Main Exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

Alternative: Side Exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

2nd 
Primary: Stair B to 1st Floor exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

Alternative: Stair A to 1st Floor exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

3rd 
Primary: Stair B to 1st Floor exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

Alternative: Stair A to 1st Floor exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

4th 
Primary: Stair B to 1st Floor exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

Alternative: Stair A to 1st Floor exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

5th 
Primary: Stair B to 1st Floor exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

Alternative: Stair A to 1st Floor exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

6th 
Primary: Stair B to 1st Floor exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

Alternative: Exit to roof setback to Stair A to 1st Floor exit onto St. Nicholas Avenue 

April 11, 2018Page 1 of 1 
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Fire Safety and Evacuation Plan (Appendix B-3)
 

Building Information Card (IFA)
 

V.6.24.16 Revised Date: 

1. Building Information BIN: 1058397 

Address: 147 Saint Nicholas Avenue New York, NY 10026 

AKA: Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Center (HHLA) 

Construction Class: Type IB / Class I-C: 2-Hr. Protected (Noncombustible) 

Occupancy: School 

School Floors: 1 - 6 

Location of Day-Care: N/A 

Public Assembly Areas: 
Cellar: Cafeteria and Multi Purpose Room (A-3) 
1st Floor: Auditorium 

Building Population: Day: 500 Night: 70 Weekend: 0 

2. Building Statistics 
Stories Above Grade: 6 Ground Level Floor Area (sq.ft): 7,853 Height (ft): 72 

Stories Below Grade: 1 Ground level Dimensions (ft): Irregular 

Type of Construction: Steel, glass, concrete 

Truss Construction: N/A 

Horizontal Connection: None 

Vertical Voids: HVAC Duct work 

Roof Setback Levels: 6th Floor 

3. Exit Stairways 
Designation 

A 

Floors Served 

Cellar - 6th FL setback 

Pressurized 

No 

Standpipe 

No 

B Cellar - Roof No Yes 

C Cellar - 1st No No 

Re-entry Floors: 

Roof Access Stairwells: Stair A to FL-6 setback Stair B to Main Roof 

Access/Convenience 
Stair Locations: 

None 

Fire Towers / Escapes: None 

4. Elevators 
Bank Letter 

A 

Car Number 

1 

Floors Served 

Cellar - 6th 

Freight Elevator Bank(s): N/A Sky Lobby(s): N/A 

MRL Elevator Bank(s): N/A 

5. Ventilation 
HVAC Zones 

Five (5) 20 Ton VFR Units on Roof serve entire building 

Building Management System (BMS):  N/A 

Smoke Management System:  Yes Purge Capability:  N/A 

Location(s) of Mechanical room(s): N/A 

6. Utilities 
Natural Gas Service: Yes Shutoff Location: POE Cellar from St Nicholas Ave 

Electric Service: Yes Locations: POE Cellar from St Nicholas Ave 

Steam Service: N/A 

Emergency Generator: Yes Fuel Type: Diesel Fuel 

Location: Roof 

7. Fire Protection System 
Standpipe Location(s): Stair B 

Standpipe Isolation Valve 
Location(s): 

Cellar 

FD Connection Location(s): 1 Combination on St Nicholas Ave 

Sprinkler System: Building Fully Sprinklered 

Pressure Reducing Valve Location(s): None 

Pump Type(s) & Location(s): Maunual 750 GPM Fire Pump in Cellar Fire Pump Room 

Non-Water Fire Extinguishing 
System: 

N/A 

System Water Source: City Main, FD Connection 

8. Hazardous Materials / Misc. 
Name of Product / Quantity (Capacity) 

275 Gallons of # 2 Diesel Fuel 

Location 

Cellar 

275 Gallons of # 2 Diesel Fuel Roof (Day Tank) 

Cell Towers Location(s): N/A 

Energy Storage System: N/A 

Uninterrupted Power System: N/A 

Special Notes Pertaining to Entire Premise 

N/A 

9. Communications 
Communication for FDNY: N/A 

Number of Radios for FDNY use: N/A 

24 Hour Location: N/A 

10. Temporary Considerations 

11. Building Fire Safety Information 
Fire Drill Conductor: Ursula Vericain 

Work Number: 

Emergency Number: 

Building Engineer: Ursula Vericain 

Work Number: 

Emergency Number 

Managing Agent: Elyse Piker 

Work Number: 

Emergency Number: 





Revised Date: 

Building Profile (Appendix D) 

Interior Fire Alarm / Temporal 3 

Building Address: 147 Saint Nicholas Avenue New York NY Zip Code: 10026 

1. Owner or person in charge of the building:
 

Company: Hebrew Public 

Company Address: 

Business Telephone Number: 

Name of Representative: 

Extension: 

Jon Rosenbaum 

2. Fire Drill Conductor: 

Ursula Vericain 

Name 

Senior Operations Manager 

Job Title 

89510978 09/01/2019 

Certificate of Fitness No.	 Expiration Date
 

Work Location	 Telephone/Cell Phone 

3.	 Location where DOB Certificate of Occupancy (C of O) is Posted in the building: 

1st Floor Front Desk 

4.	 General Description of the Building: 

Building Height [ft]: 72 No. of Above Grade Stories: 6 No. of Below Grade Stories: 1 

Area (width x length at ground level) [sqft]: Irregular: 7853 No. of Hotel guest rooms: 0 

Aggregated Floor Area (Total/Sum of entire building's floor areas) [sqft]: 50,691 

Class of Construction as listed on the current C of O: Type IB / Class I-C: 2-Hr. Protected (Noncombustible) 

5.	 Stairwell, Fire Towers, Fire Escapes and Access/Convenience Stairs: 

Letter 
Designation Type Location Floors Served Floor No. of any Horizontal 

Exit Passageways 

A Return South side of building Cellar - 6th FL 
setback N/A 
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Letter 
Designation Type Location Floors Served Floor No. of any Horizontal 

Exit Passageways 

B Return North side of Building Cellar - Roof N/A 

C Straight W 118 St side Cellar - 1st N/A 

List Stairwell Re-entry Floors and Indicate if Fail-Safe Lock Release is Installed on Re-entry Floors: 

All Floors 

6. Elevator and/or Escalator Information:
 

Elevator 
Bank 

Designation 
Letter 

Elevator 
Car 

Number(s) 

Elevator 
Classification 

Operation 
(Manual/ 

Automatic) 
Floors Served Fireman 

Service 
Elevator Machine 

Room Location 

2 Way Voice 
to Fire 

Command 
Center 

In common 
shaft with 

other Cars? 

A 1 Passenger Automatic Cellar - 6th Yes Roof Yes No 

Elevator cars in common shafts:
 

Bank Letter Car Numbers 

N/A 

Special features in use for elevator systems: 

N/A 

No Escalators in the building 

7.	 Interior Fire Alarm or Alarms to Central Station: 

Gamewell FCI E3 

Brand Model Number 

Temperal 3 IFA IRL Systems 

Type/Classification Central Station Monitoring Company 

Supervision of Interior Fire Alarm System-Personnel Information (S-95 C of F only): 

Edwin J Franco Operations 

Name Job Title


89532733 1/31/2021
 

Certificate Number	 Expiration Date
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Regular Assigned Location:
 

How is he/she notified when not at regular location (include a business or cell number if applicable): 

Cell Phone: 

8. Communications systems other than required building fire alarm system: 

Cell Phones , Walkie Talkies 

9. Standpipe System:
 

Location of Riser (e.g. "Stair A") Diameter of Riser [in] 

Stair B 6" 

Type of Tank Tank Location Capacity Fire Reserve 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Type of Pump Type Pump Location Output System(s) Served 
[include floors served if applicable] 

Fire Manual Cellar 750 GPM Sprinkler & Standpipe 

Number & Location(s) of Fire 
Department Connections: 

Certificate of Fitness holder: 

Certificate Number: 

One (1) Combination on St Nicholas Avenue 

Michael A Giachetti 

89089155 Expiration Date: 4/2/2020 

10. Sprinkler System: 

Primary Water Supply: City Main 

Area Protected: Entire Building 

Combination Standpipe/Sprinkler System: Yes 

Secondary Water Supply: 

No 

FD Connection 

✔ 

Type of Tank Tank Location Capacity Fire Reserve 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Type Pump Type Pump Location Output System(s) Served 
[include floors served if applicable] 

Appendix D - V.6.24.16 147 Saint Nicholas Avenue New York NY Page 3 of 6
 

http:V.6.24.16


Revised Date:
 

Type Pump Type Pump Location Output System(s) Served 
[include floors served if applicable] 

Fire Manual Cellar 750 GPM Sprinkler & Standpipe 

Number & Location(s) of Fire One (1) Combination on St Nicholas AvenueDepartment Connections: 

Certificate of Fitness holder: Michael A Giachetti
 

Certificate Number: 89089007 Expiration Date: 4/2/2020 

11. Fire extinguishing systems (e.g. Halon, Pre-Action, Commercial Cooking, Deluge, Cleaning Agent): 

Extinguishing System Location Connected to building 
Fire Alarm System 

N/A 

12. Average number of employees normally in the building: 

Daytime: 100 Nighttime: 20 Weekend: 0 

13. Average number of guests normally in the building: 

Daytime: 400 Nighttime: 50 Weekend: 0 

14. Average number and location of persons with special needs in building. Keep list readily available for 
the FDNY inspection at Fire Command Center (list ADA rooms, if any). 

Daytime: Number of Persons: 0 Location: 

Nighttime: Number of Persons: 0 Location: 

Weekend: Number of Persons: 0 Location: 

15. Service Equipment: 

(a) Electric Power: 

Primary - Street name where power enters the building: Cellar from St Nicholas Avenue 

Auxiliary - Generator: Yes Type of Fuel: Diesel Fuel 

Location of Auxiliary generator: Roof 

Energy Storage System: N/A
 

Uninterrupted Power System: N/A
 

(b)
 Emergency Lighting Type Location 
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(b)
 Emergency Lighting Type Location 

Emergency Generator Throughout 

(c) Heating: 

Type: HVAC 

Fuel: #2 Diesel Fuel 

Location of heating unit: Five (5) 20 Ton Roof top Units 

(d) Ventilation: 

Emergency means of exhausting heat and smoke: Yes 

Smoke purge system: No Smoke Shaft: No 

Do the windows open on any floor: No 

(e) Air Conditioning System: 

Central A/C: Yes Through the floor duct work: Yes 

List Floors: Cellar - 6th Floor 

Location of Supply Fan Area Served (include floor level) 

5 Units: Roof Entire Building (Cellar - 6th Floor) 

Package units: No
 

Water Cooling Tower: No
 

(f) Refuse storage and disposal: Yes 

List type and location: General Rubbish removed to street daily 

(g) Fire fighting equipment and appliances, other than standpipe and sprinkler system: 

ABC Fire Extinguishers 

(h) Roof set-backs, utility shafts, cross bridges, passageway between buildings (interconnected 
buildings), tunnels, linen chutes, refuse chutes and other pertinent building information (indicate type 
and location): 

Roof setback on 6th Floor 
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16. Storage and use of flammable and combustible liquids and flammable gases (including fuel oil storage 
tanks) (indicate type and location): 
275 Gallons of #2 DF on Roof (Generator Day Tank) 
275 Gallons of #2 DF in Cellar 

17. Special occupancies in the building: Examples include places of assembly, studios, cafeterias, auditoriums, 
theaters and mercantile occupancies. (indicate type and location): 
Cellar: A-3 Cafeteria and Multi Purpose Room 
1st Floor: A-3 Auditorium 
6th Floor setback: A-3 Outdoor Play Area 

18. Number and location of electrical transformers containing polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB): 

N/A 
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Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 122544112T009 

This  certifies that the premises  described  herein conforms substantially  to the approved plans and specifications and to the 
requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified. No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued. This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the 
building at all reasonable times. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Borough: Manhattan 

Address: 147 SAINT NICHOLAS AVENUE 

Building Identification Number (BIN): 1058397 

Block Number: 01923 

Building Type: 
Altered 

Lot Number(s): 49 

Certificate Type: Temporary 

Effective Date: 05/25/2018 

08/23/2018 Expiration Date: 

This building is subject to this Building Code:  

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb. 

Construction classification: 

Building Occupancy Group classification: 

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification: 

E 

None 

(2014/2008 Code) 

1-B (2014/2008 Code) 

No. of stories: Height in feet: No. of dwelling units: 6  72  0 

Fire Protection Equipment: 
Standpipe system, Fire alarm system, Sprinkler system 

Type and number of open spaces: 
None associated with this filing. 

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations: 
None 

Outstanding requirements for obtaining Final Certificate of Occupancy: 

There are 50 outstanding requirements. Please refer to BISWeb for further detail. 

Borough Comments: None 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 
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Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 122544112T009 

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations. 

Floor 
From To 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group Description of use 

CEL OG 173 3 CAFETERIA A-3 

CEL OG 105 3 MULTI-PURPOSE ROOM A-3 

CEL OG 2 3 MECHANICAL ROOMS E 

CEL OG 41 3 CLASSROOMS AND ACCESSORY SPACES E 

001 10016 3 FACILITY LOUNGE (FIRST FLOOR LOWER 
LEVEL) 

E 

001 8034 3 OFFICES (FIRST FLOOR) E 

001 12555 3 PLATFORM:PART OF AUDITORIUM ( FIRST 
FLOOR) 

E 

001 100164 3 AUDITORIUM & LOBBY ACCESSORY TO 
SCHOOL ( FIRST FLOOR LOWER LEVEL) 

A-3 

002 80229 3 CLASSROOMS AND ACCESSORY SPACES E 

003 80221 3 CLASSROOMS AND ACCESSORY SPACES E 

004 80223 3 3 CLASSROOMS AND ACCESSORY SPACES E 

005 80232 3 CLASSROOMS AND ACCESSORY SPACES E 

CITYV RRECORD FILING NUMBERS: CRFN 2015000175652: EXHIBIT III-ZONING LOT DESCRIPTION; CRFN 2015000175651: EXHIBIT II-
CERTIFICARION OF ZONING LOT; CRFN 2015000175654: EXHIBIT V-WAIVER OF DECLARATION OF ZONING LOT RESTRICTIONS; 
CRFN 2015000175652: EXHIBIT IV DECLARATION OF ZONING OF ZONING LOT RESTRICTIONS 

END OF SECTION 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

END OF DOCUMENT 122544112/009  5/25/2018 11:46:55 AM 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 


Board of Trustees 
Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School  

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities and 
changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.  

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School, Inc.’s June 30, 2017 financial 
statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated 
October 10, 2017. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of June 30, 2017 is 
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Report Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards,  we have also issued our report dated October 18,  2018 on our 
consideration of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.  
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the control over financial reporting or 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Rochester, New York 
October 18, 2018 
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HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2018 
(With Comparative Totals For 2017) 

June 30, 
ASSETS 2018 2017 

CURRENT ASSETS
 Cash 107,531 $ $ 168,247 
  Cash in escrow 75,352 75,221
  Grants and other receivables 526,408 201,324
  Prepaid expenses 25,500 132,889 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 734,791 577,681 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 475,120 459,169 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,209,911 $ $ 1,036,850 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 205,515 $ $ 178,443 
  Accrued payroll and benefits 317,500 441,446
  Due to Charter Management Organization 207,038 67,258
  Deferred revenue 21,790 2,934 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 751,843 690,081 

DEFERRED LEASE LIABILITY 149,246 144,723 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 308,822 202,046 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 308,822 202,046 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 
AND NET ASSETS 1,209,911 $ $ 1,036,850 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
	

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals For 2017) 

Operating revenue and support:
    State and local per-pupil operating r
    Governmental grants and contracts 
    Contributions 
    Other revenue 

evenue 

TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT 

2017 

7,863,367 $ 5,933,037$ 
403,269 370,315
252,131 720,436
20,911 33,131 

8,539,678 7,056,919 

Year ended June 30, 
2018 

Expenses:
  Program services:
    Regular education 
    Special education 

  Management and general 
TOTAL PROGRAM SERVICES 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

6,281,257 
1,369,447 

7,650,704 
782,198 

8,432,902 

5,374,973
1,113,250 

6,488,223
838,394 

7,326,617 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 106,776 (269,698) 

Net assets at beginning of year 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 

202,046 471,744 

308,822 $ 202,046$ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
(With Comparative Totals For 2017) 

Personnel services costs:
   Administrative staff personnel 
   Instructional personnel 

No. of positions 
June 30, 
2018 

11 
62

Regular 
Education 

257,461$ 

2,866,867 

Special 
Education 

36,077$ 

632,173 

Program Services 

$ 

Year ended June 30, 
2018 

Supporting 
Services 
Management 
and 

Sub-total general 

293,538 357,353$ 

3,499,040 

-

$ 

Total 

650,891 

3,499,040

$ 

2017 

Total 

488,044 

3,034,428 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES COSTS 73

 3,124,328 

   668,250 

3,792,578 
357,353 

           4,149,931

 3,522,472 Fringe benefits and payroll taxes
Retirement
Management company fees
Legal fees
Accounting/audit services
Other purchased/professional/consulting services
Building and land rent/lease
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Utilities 
Supplies / materials
Staff/professional development
Student and staff recruitment
Technology
Food services
Student services
Office expense

Depreciation and amortization

Bad debt expense

Other
 $ 

773,684 

39,192 
252,393 

-
-

              109,653 

995,453 
172,017 

40,265 
99,275 
144,087 

80,697 
37,515 

6,966 162,934 

63,592 
44,896 
133,787 

-523 

6,281,257 $ 

165,480 

8,382      53,983 

-
-
24,454 212,913 
     36,792 

8,612 

21,234 

     38,601 

20,270 

9,788 
1,672 
43,650      17,036 

9,603
 28,615 

-

112 
1,369,447 $ 

939,164 47,574 

306,376 

-
-

134,107 1,208,366 

208,809 48,877 
120,509 

182,688 
100,967 

47,303 

8,638 206,584 

80,628 
54,499 
162,402 

-635 

7,650,704 $ 

88,492 

4,483 
28,868 
23,366 

                95,401 

10,424 

113,857 

19,675 

4,605 
11,355 

-

                  2,857 

554 

411 

-
-5,135 

                15,302 

-
60 

782,198 $ 

1,027,656

 52,057

 335,244

 23,366

 95,401
 144,531

1,322,223
 228,484

 53,482
 131,864

 182,688

 103,824

 47,857 9,049 206,584

 80,628 59,634

 177,704

 -
695

8,432,902  $ 

766,997 

46,728 
202,276 

7,911 
78,556 
231,033 1,364,593 

146,208 

35,190 97,110 

164,476 

58,275 
48,507 
16,680 
226,356 

85,010 
53,958 
133,684 

40,422 

175 

7,326,617 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
	

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals For 2017) 


Year ended June 30, 
2018 2017 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Change in net assets $ 106,776 $ (269,698) 
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
    provided from operating activities:
      Depreciation and amortization 177,704 133,684
      Bad debt expense - 40,422
      Changes in certain assets and liabilities affecting operations:
        Grants and other receivables (325,084) 45,532
        Prepaid expenses 107,389 (90,451)
        Accounts payable and accrued expenses 27,072 (5,346)
        Accrued payroll and benefits (123,946) 83,096
        Due to Charter Management Organization 139,780 67,258
        Deferred revenue 18,856 2,934
        Deferred lease liability 4,523 144,723 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 133,070 152,154 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Increase in cash in escrow (131) (117)
  Purchases of property and equipment (193,655) (102,265) 

NET CASH USED FOR 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (193,786) (102,382) 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH (60,716) 49,772 

Cash at beginning of year 168,247 118,475 

CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 107,531 $ 168,247 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals For 2017)
	

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Charter School 
Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School (the “Charter School”), is an education corporation 
operating as a charter school in New York, New York. On July 12, 2012, the Board of Regents and the Board 
of Trustees of the University of the State of New York, on behalf of the State Education Department, granted 
the Charter School a charter valid for a term of 5 years, renewable upon expiration in June 2018. On 
January 23, 2018, the Board of Regents and the Board of Trustees of the University of the State of New York, 
on behalf of the State Education Department, renewed the Charter School’s charter for a term of 4 years 
through June 30, 2022. As part of the renewal, the Charter School was granted approval to expand their grades 
from K-5 to K-8. 

The Charter School provides students with the academic and personal foundation necessary to successfully 
pursue advanced studies and achieve continued personal growth as ethical and informed global citizens. In 
order to accomplish this, the Charter School offers an academically rigorous curriculum which includes daily 
instruction in the Hebrew language. 

Financial Statement presentation 
The financial statements of the Charter School have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The 
Charter School reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of 
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. 

These classes of net assets are defined as follows: 

Permanently restricted – Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the 
Charter School is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be 
fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Charter School. The Charter School had no permanently 
restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

Temporarily restricted – Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the 
Charter School is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be 
fulfilled and removed by actions of the Charter School pursuant to those stipulations. The Charter School 
had no temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

Unrestricted – The net assets over which the Governing Board has discretionary control to use in carrying on 
the Charter School’s operations in accordance with the guidelines established by the Charter School. The 
Board may designate portions of the current unrestricted net assets for specific purposes, projects or 
investment. 
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HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals For 2017)
	

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
Cont’d 

Revenue and support recognition 
Revenue from state and local governments resulting from the Charter School’s charter status and based upon 
the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter 
agreement. 

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the Charter School 
when qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable or the requirements of the grant are met. 

Contributions are recognized as revenue in the year a pledge is received and documented.   

Contributions 
Contributions and unconditional promises to give are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily or permanently 
restricted support depending on the existence of any donor restrictions. A contribution that is received and 
expended in the same year for a specific purpose is classified as unrestricted revenue. 

Contributions are recorded as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of 
the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated purpose restriction is 
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. 

Cash 
Cash balances are maintained at a financial institution located in New York and are insured by the FDIC up to 
$250,000 at that institution. In the normal course of business, the cash account balances at any given time may 
exceed insured limits. However, the Charter School has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does 
not believe it is exposed to significant risk in cash. 

Cash in escrow 
The Charter School maintains cash in an escrow account, pursuant to its Charter Agreement, to pay off 
expenses in the event of dissolution of the Charter School. The amount in escrow was approximately $75,000 
at June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Grants and other receivables 
Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.  
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts based on its assessment of the current status of 
individual receivables from grants, agencies and others. Balances that are still outstanding after management has 
used reasonable collection efforts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. There was no 
allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method on a 
basis considered adequate to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives which range from three to 
seven years.  Leasehold improvements are being amortized over the term of the lease. 
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HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals For 2017)
	

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
Cont’d 

Deferred lease liability 
The Charter School leases its facility.  The lease contains significant pre-determined fixed escalations of the 
base rent.  In accordance with GAAP, the Charter School recognizes the related rent expense on a straight-line 
basis and records the difference between the recognized rental expense and the amounts paid under the lease as 
a deferred lease liability.  The amount of additional rent expense recognized in excess of the amounts paid 
under the lease was $4,523 and $144,723 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Deferred revenue 
The Charter School records grant revenue as deferred revenue until it is expended for the purpose of the grant 
at which time it is recognized as revenue. 

Tax exempt status 
The Charter School is a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
applicable state regulations and, accordingly, is exempt from federal and state taxes on income. 

The Charter School files Form 990 tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The tax returns for the years 
ended June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2018 are still subject to potential audit by the IRS. Management of the 
Charter School believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly it will not recognize any 
liability for unrecognized tax benefits. 

Contributed services 
The Charter school receives contributed services from volunteers to develop its academic program and to serve 
on the Board of Trustees. In addition, the Charter School received donated transportation services, office 
equipment, and speech, occupational and physical therapy services that were provided for the students from the 
local district. These services are not valued in the financial statements. 

In-kind contributions 
Gifts and donations other than cash are recorded at fair market value at the date of contribution. There were no 
in-kind contributions received during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Marketing costs 
The Charter School expenses marketing costs as they are incurred. Total marketing and recruiting costs 
approximated $47,900 and $48,500 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
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HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals For 2017)
	

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
Cont’d 

Comparatives for year ended June 30, 2017 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not by 
functional classification. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such 
information should be read in conjunction with the Charter School’s financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2017, from which the summarized information was derived. 

Reclassifications 
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation.   

Subsequent events 
The Charter School has conducted an evaluation of potential subsequent events occurring after the statement of 
financial position date through October 18, 2018, which is the date the financial statements are available to be 
issued. No subsequent events requiring disclosure were noted, except as noted at Note B, H and I. 

NOTE B: SCHOOL FACILITY 

The Charter School entered into a lease agreement as of July 1, 2015 with Friends of Hebrew Language 
Academy Charter Schools, Inc. (“FOHLA”) for its facilities through June 2033. This lease was subsequently 
amended in July and September 2016. Effective September 8, 2016, the Charter School signed the second 
amendment for their lease for its facilities through June 30, 2024. On June 13, 2018, the Charter School 
entered into a second amended and restated sublease agreement with FOHLA, effective July 1, 2018, which 
extended their lease for its facilities through June 30, 2048. The Charter School’s base rent for the year ended 
June 30, 2018 was $108,350 per month.  The base rent will increase in accordance with the lease agreement. 

The Charter School had an additional agreement to rent summer space from 118 Community Equities LLC 
from July 1, 2016 through August 31, 2016. The total expense for the summer space was $17,500. 

The School signed an additional agreement in April 2017 to rent the same space from July 1, 2017 through 
August 31, 2017 for the same amount as 2016. The School signed an additional agreement in June 2018 to rent 
the same space from July 2, 2018 through August 3, 2018 for $7,500. Rent expense totaled approximately 
$1,322,000, for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. 
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HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals For 2017)
	

NOTE B: SCHOOL FACILITY, Cont’d 

The future minimum payments on these agreements are as follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2019 $ 2,207,700 
2020 2,900,400 
2021 3,500,000 
2022 3,500,000 
2023 3,500,000 

Thereafter 104,241,610 

$119,849,710 

NOTE C: OPERATING LEASE 

The Charter School leases office equipment under non-cancelable lease agreements expiring in December 
2021. Lease expense was approximately $27,200 and $25,300, for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively.  The future minimum payments on this agreement are as follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2019 $ 11,076 
2020 11,076 
2021 11,076 
2022 5,538 

$ 38,766 

NOTE D: RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Charter School sponsors a defined contribution retirement plan which covers substantially all full-time 
employees. The Charter School contributed a dollar-to-dollar match up to 3% of the employees’ compensation. 
During the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Charter School contributed approximately $49,500 and 
$44,400, respectively, for the employer match. Administrative fees were approximately $2,500 and $2,300 for 
the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
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HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals For 2017)
	

NOTE E: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consisted of the following: 

June 30, 
2018 2017 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 700,979$ $ 507,324 
Leasehold improvements 284,853 284,853 

985,832 792,177 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 510,712 333,008 

475,120$ $ 459,169 

NOTE F: CONTINGENCY 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by funding sources. Such audits might result in 
disallowance of costs submitted for reimbursement by the Charter School. Management is of the opinion that 
such disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements. 
Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial statements for such potential 
claims. 

NOTE G: CONCENTRATIONS 

At June 30, 2018 and 2017, approximately 58% and 89%, respectively, of grants and other receivables are due 
from New York State relating to certain grants. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, approximately 41% and 9%, 
respectively, of grants and other receivables are due from a related party. 

For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, 92% and 84%, respectively, of total operating revenue and support 
came from per-pupil funding provided by New York State.  The per-pupil rate is set annually by the State based 
on the school district in which the Charter School’s students are located. 
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HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL
	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals For 2017)
	

NOTE H: CHARTER MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION
	

In January 2016, the Charter School entered into an educational services agreement with a charter management 
organization, National Center for Hebrew Language Charter School Excellence and Development, Inc. 
(“Hebrew Public”) to provide expertise necessary to effectively provide essential programming and services to 
the Charter School. The agreement continued through June 30, 2018. On April 11, 2018, the agreement was 
renewed through June 30, 2022.  The percent of gross revenue used for the calculation is as follows: 

Percentage of 
Gross Revenue 

School Year per Agreement 

2016 - 2017 3.75% 
2017 - 2018 5% 
2018 - 2019 10% 
2019 - 2020 10% 
2020 - 2021 10% 
2021 - 2022 10% 

The total expense for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was approximately $335,240 and $202,280, 
respectively. Amounts due to Hebrew Public relating to the management fee were $83,229 and $67,258 at 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  

In addition to the management fee, Hebrew Public paid $23,809 of other expenses on behalf of the Charter 
School during the year ended June 30, 2018 for which the Charter School will reimburse Hebrew Public. 

In June 2018, Hebrew Public loaned $100,000 to the Charter School for cash flow needs. This loan was paid 
back in full in July 2018. 

The total amounts due to Hebrew Public at June 30, 2018 and 2017 were $207,038 and $67,258, respectively. 

NOTE I: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In August 2018, the New York State Education Department (NYSED) notified the Charter School that it had 
over-allocated $34,870 in Title IIA funding to the Charter School for the year ended June 30, 2018.  NYSED 
will reduce the Charter School’s Title IIA funding for a period of up to five years to recoup the over-allocated 
funding. The Charter School has not accounted for this over-allocated funding as a liability as of June 30, 
2018. 

On September 17, 2018, the Charter School became the guarantor of three loans of FOHLA obtained in 
conjunction with the building in which the Charter School occupies. The aggregate principal balance of the 
loans as of September 17, 2018 was $14,424,700 which is fully guaranteed by the Charter School. The loans 
bear interest at the LIBOR Daily Floating Rate plus 325 basis points (effective rate of 5.17% at September 17, 
2018). At September 17, 2018, the maximum potential amount of future payments of principal and interest 
(undiscounted) the guarantor could be required to make under the guarantee is approximately $18,100,000. The 
guaranty shall continue in effect until all obligations are fully paid which is expected to be September 17, 2023. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 

ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
 

Board of Trustees 
Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School  

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018 and the related statements of activities and 
changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 18, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Harlem Hebrew Language 
Academy Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Harlem Hebrew Language 
Academy Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we have reported to management of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter 
School in a separate letter dated October 18, 2018. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Rochester, New York 
October 18, 2018 
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October 18, 2018
	

The Finance Committee  
Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

We have audited the financial statements of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated October 18, 2018. Professional standards 
require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 24, 2018, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve 
you or management of its respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, 
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of 
financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we 
considered the internal control of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School solely for the purpose of 
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not 
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.  

We have provided our comments regarding control deficiencies and other matters noted during our audit in a 
separate letter to you dated October 18, 2018. 
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Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 
Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant 
accounting policies adopted by Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School is included in Note A to the 
financial statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant 
accounting policies or their application during the year ended June 30, 2018. No matters have come to our attention 
that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for 
significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging 
areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past 
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting 
them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the allocations of operating expenses 
to program expenses and management and general expenses and the collectability of grants receivable. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that they are reasonable in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 
Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting Harlem Hebrew Language 
Academy Charter School’s financial statements relate to revenue and support recognition and the lease 
commitments, which is referred to in the notes of the financial statements. 

- 3 -




        

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

   
  

 

 
 

  

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
 

 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of 
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or 
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole.  Management has corrected all identified misstatements. 

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements that were 
brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. None of the misstatements identified by 
us as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by management were material either individually or in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole.   

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or 
not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be 
significant to Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. We 
are pleased to report no such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management 
representation letter. 

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters. 
Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants regarding 
auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School, we 
generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
business conditions affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material 
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Harlem Hebrew Language 
Academy Charter School’s auditors. 

* * * * * 
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Should you desire further information concerning these matters, Michelle Cain or Kate Welc will be happy to meet 
with you at your convenience. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, Finance Committee and 
management of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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October  18,  2018 

To the Board of Trustees 
Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter 
School (the “Charter School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Charter School’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the 
likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as follows: 

	 Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than 
likely. 

	 Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this letter and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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During the course of our audit of the financial statements of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School as 
of June 30, 2018, we observed the Charter School’s significant accounting policies and procedures and certain 
business, financial and administrative practices. As a result of our observations, we suggest you consider the 
following comments which we do not consider to be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses: 

Credit Card Procedures 
During our audit, we noted that certain credit card purchases did not have proper receipts maintained. We noted that 
Hebrew Public did not review the monthly credit card statements. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the Charter School continue to implement the credit card procedures documented in the 
Financial Policies and Procedures Manual. All receipts should be maintained for credit card purchases. Hebrew 
Public should document their review of monthly credit card statements. 

Status of matters included in our letter as of June 30, 2017, dated October 10, 2017 

Employee Reimbursement Approval 
During our audit, we noted proper procedures were not being followed for the approval of the Head of School’s 
employee reimbursement forms.  The interim Head of School approved her own employee reimbursement form. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the Charter School follow the procedures listed in its Financial Policies and Procedures 
Manual. A member from Hebrew Public must approve the Head of School’s expense reimbursement forms 
before payment is made. 

Status as of June 30, 2018 
During our 2018 audit, there were no employee reimbursements to the Head of School. Therefore, we 
reviewed one employee reimbursement form submitted by the Director of Operations and one employee 
reimbursement form submitted by another employee. We noted proper approvals were attained for each 
reimbursement form tested.  

Bank Reconciliation 
During our audit, we noted there was no evidence of review on the bank statements or bank reconciliations showing 
that a member of Hebrew Public reviewed and approved the documents. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the Charter School update the procedures listed in their Financial Policies and Procedures 
Manual to include a signature. After receiving and reviewing the bank statements and bank reconciliations, the 
reviewer should sign their name indicating their approval. 

Status as of June 30, 2018 
During our 2018 audit, we reviewed a bank statement and related bank reconciliation noting that the 
reconciliation was initialed by the Board Treasurer signifying his review and approval.  
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Incentive Bonus Approval 
During our audit, we noted the incentive bonus was paid out in July 2017. We reviewed the board minutes from the 
school year and did not see any mention of bonuses throughout the minutes. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the Charter School follow the procedures listed in their Financial Policies and Procedures 
Manual. The Board must approve the bonus calculation and document their approval explicitly in the meeting 
minutes. 

Status as of June 30, 2018 
During our 2018 audit, we noted there were no bonuses paid out for the year ended June 30, 2018.  
Therefore there was no approval required. 

* * * * * 

We will review the status of this comment during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed this 
comment with the Charter School’s management, and will be pleased to discuss it in further detail at your 
convenience, to perform any additional study of this matter, or to assist you in implementing the recommendation. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of Management, Finance Committee Members 
and Board Members and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We appreciate the outstanding cooperation from your staff that our personnel received during the audit of the 
Charter School’s financial statements. Should you have any questions or comments, please contact Michelle Cain 
or Kate Welc. 

Very  truly  yours,  

MENGEL,  METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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Annual Financial Statement Audit Report 

School Name: Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

Date (Report is due Nov. 1): November 1, 2018 

Primary District of Location 
(If NYC select NYC DOE): 

New York City Department of Education 

If located in NYC DOE select CSD: NYCSD #3 

School Fiscal Contact Name: Elly Rosenthal 
School Fiscal Contact Email: 
School Fiscal Contact Phone: 

School Audit Firm Name: Mengel Metzger Barr & Co. LLP 
School Audit Contact Name: Michelle Cain 
School Audit Contact Email: 
School Audit Contact Phone: 

Audit Period: 2017-18 
Prior Year: 2016-17 

The following items are required to be included: 

1.) The independent auditor’s report on financial statements and notes.
�
2.) Excel template file containing the Financial Position, Statement of Activities, Cash Flow and Functional
�
Expenses worksheets.
�
3.) Reports on internal controls over financial reporting and on compliance.
�

The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the items are
�
not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend
�
federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be
�
submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc.
�

Item If not included, state the reason(s) below (if not applicable fill in N/A): 

Management Letter 

Management Letter Response N/A 

Federal Single Audit (A-133) N/A - the school did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single 
Audit Threshold of $750,000 

Corrective Action Plan N/A 





         
     
     

 
    

   
 

 
   

  
   

 
    
 

 
  

 

 

 
    

     
    

   
 

 
  

 

 
       

 
   

  
 

 

Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
 
Statement of Financial Position
 

as of June 30
 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 
Other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net 
Restricted Cash 
Security Deposits 
Other Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 
ASSETS 
TOTAL ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

2018 

107,531 
301,185 
225,223 

25,500 
-
-

659,439 

475,120 
75,352 

-
-

550,472 

1,209,911 

$ 

$ 

2017 

168,247 
182,012 

19,312 
132,889 

-
-

502,460 

459,169 
75,221 

-
-

534,390 

1,036,850 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 
Due to Related Parties 
Refundable Advances 
Deferred Revenue 
Other Current Liabilities 

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year 
Deferred Rent 
Due to Related Party 
Other Long-Term Liabilities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

$ 

$ 

205,515 
317,500 

-
207,038 

-
21,790 

-
751,843 

-
149,246 

-
-

149,246 

901,089 

$ 178,443 
441,446 

-
67,258 

-
2,934 

-
690,081 

144,723 
-
-

144,723 

834,804 



 

 
 

   

       

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

$ 308,822 
-
-

308,822 

$ 202,046 
-
-

202,046 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 1,209,911 1,036,850 



         
   

     

 
        
       
      

 
   
  
   
   

 
 
 

 
  

  

 

       

     
   

  
 

 
   

       

               
 

     

         
   

Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
 
Statement of Activities
 

as of June 30
 

Unrestricted 

2018 
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Total 
2017 

Total 

OPERATING REVENUE 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED 
State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue 
Federal Grants 
State and City Grants 
Other Operating Income 
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 

$ 5,644,410 
1,060,465 
1,158,492 

247,170 
26,366 

-
129,733 

8,266,636 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 5,644,410 
1,060,465 
1,158,492 

247,170 
26,366 

-
129,733 

8,266,636 

$ 4,651,229 
742,808 
538,999 
226,622 

28,302 
-

115,392 
6,303,352 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education 
Special Education 
Other Programs 

Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

$ 6,281,257 
1,369,447 

-
7,650,704 

782,198 
-

8,432,902 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 6,281,257 
1,369,447 

-
7,650,704 

782,198 
-

8,432,902 

$ 5,374,973 
1,113,250 

-
6,488,223 

838,394 
-

7,326,617 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS (166,266) - (166,266) (1,023,265) 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Interest and Other Income 
Contributions and Grants 
Fundraising Support 
Investments 
Donated Services 
Other Support and Revenue 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

$ 131 
252,131 

-
-
-

20,780 
273,042 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 131 
252,131 

-
-
-

20,780 
273,042 

$ 117 
720,436 

-
-
-

33,014 
753,567 

Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal 
of Assets 
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

$ -

106,776 

$ -

-

$ -

106,776 

$ -

(269,698) 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

$ 202,046 
-

$ -
-

$ 202,046 
-

$ 471,744 
-



         NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 308,822 $ - $ 308,822 $ 202,046 



         
     

     

       
    

    
 

   

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
 

    
     

         

       
  

         

       
    

         

             
    

             

Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
 
Statement of Cash Flows
 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Revenues from School Districts 
Accounts Receivable 
Due from School Districts 
Depreciation 
Grants Receivable 
Due from NYS 
Grant revenues 
Prepaid Expenses 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Expenses 
Accrued Liabilities 
Contributions and fund-raising activities 
Miscellaneous sources 
Deferred Revenue 
Interest payments 
Other - Deferred lease liability 
Other - Due to CMO 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash at beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

as of June 30 

2018 2017 

$ 106,776 
-

$ (269,698) 
-

(205,912) 
-

173,706 
-

177,704 
(119,172) 

-

133,684 
(87,752) 

-
- -

107,389 
45,220 

(18,148) 
(123,946) 

-

(90,451) 
(12,672) 

7,326 
83,096 

-
- -

18,856 
-

2,934 
-

$ 

4,523 
139,780 
133,070 $ 

144,723 
67,258 

152,154 

$ 

$ 

(193,655) 
(131) 

(193,786) 

$ 

$ 

(102,265) 
(117) 

(102,382) 

$ $ 
- -
- -

$ - $ -

$ 

$ 

(60,716) 
168,247 
107,531 

$ 

$ 

49,772 
118,475 
168,247 



         
     

     

   
 

 
         

  
 

 
   

    

  
 

   
    

 
     
  

  
  

 
   

  
 

 

 

Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
 
Statement of Functional Expenses
 

as of June 30
 

Personnel Services Costs 
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 
Management Company Fees 
Legal Service 
Accounting / Audit Services 
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies / Materials 
Equipment / Furnishings 
Staff Development 
Marketing / Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 
Student Services 
Office Expense 
Depreciation 
OTHER 

No. of 
Positions 

11.00 
62.00 

-
73.00 

Regular 
Education 

$ 
257,462 

2,866,868 
-

3,124,330 
773,685 

39,191 
252,393 

-
-

109,654 

995,453 
172,017 

40,265 
99,275 

144,087 
-

80,698 
37,514 

6,965 
162,934 

63,591 
44,896 

133,786 
523 

Program Services 
Special 

Education 
Other 

Education 
$ $ 

36,077 -
632,173 -

- -
668,250 -
165,480 -

8,382 -
53,983 -

- -
- -

24,454 -

212,913 -
36,792 -

8,612 -
21,234 -
38,601 -

- -
20,270 -

9,788 -
1,672 -

43,650 -
17,036 -

9,603 -
28,615 -
112 -

$ 

Total 

293,539 
3,499,041 

-
3,792,580 

939,165 
47,573 

306,376 
-
-

134,108 

1,208,366 
208,809 

48,877 
120,509 
182,688 

-
100,968 

47,302 
8,637 

206,584 
80,627 
54,499 

162,401 
635 

2018 
Supporting Services 

Fundraising Management 
and General 

$ $ $ 
- 357,353 
- -
- -
- 357,353 
- 88,492 
- 4,483 
- 28,868 
- 23,366 
- 95,401 
- 10,424 

- 113,857 
- 19,675 
- 4,605 
- 11,355 
- -
- -
- 2,857 
- 554 
- 411 
- -
- -
- 5,135 
- 15,302 
- 60 

Total 

357,353 
-
-

357,353 
88,492 

4,483 
28,868 
23,366 
95,401 
10,424 

113,857 
19,675 

4,605 
11,355 

-
-

2,857 
554 
411 

-
-

5,135 
15,302 
60 

Total Expenses $ 6,281,257 $ 1,369,447 $ - $ 7,650,704 $ - $ 782,198 $ 782,198 



Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
Statement of Functional Expenses

as of June 30

2018

  

         
     

     

2017

 Total 

$ 
650,892 

3,499,041 
-

4,149,933 
1,027,657 

52,056 
335,244 

23,366 
95,401 

144,532 

$ 
488,044 

3,034,428 
-

3,522,472 
766,997 

46,728 
202,276 

7,911 
78,556 

231,033 

$ 

1,322,223 
228,484 

53,482 
131,864 
182,688 

-
103,825 

47,856 
9,048 

206,584 
80,627 
59,634 

177,703 
695 

8,432,902 $ 

1,364,593 
146,208 

35,190 
97,110 

164,476 
-

58,275 
48,507 
16,680 

226,356 
85,010 
53,958 

133,684 
40,597 

7,326,617 
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October  18,  2018 

To the Board of Trustees 
Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter 
School (the “Charter School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Charter School’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the 
likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as follows: 

	 Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than 
likely. 

	 Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this letter and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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During the course of our audit of the financial statements of Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School as 
of June 30, 2018, we observed the Charter School’s significant accounting policies and procedures and certain 
business, financial and administrative practices. As a result of our observations, we suggest you consider the 
following comments which we do not consider to be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses: 

Credit Card Procedures 
During our audit, we noted that certain credit card purchases did not have proper receipts maintained. We noted that 
Hebrew Public did not review the monthly credit card statements. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the Charter School continue to implement the credit card procedures documented in the 
Financial Policies and Procedures Manual. All receipts should be maintained for credit card purchases. Hebrew 
Public should document their review of monthly credit card statements. 

Status of matters included in our letter as of June 30, 2017, dated October 10, 2017 

Employee Reimbursement Approval 
During our audit, we noted proper procedures were not being followed for the approval of the Head of School’s 
employee reimbursement forms.  The interim Head of School approved her own employee reimbursement form. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the Charter School follow the procedures listed in its Financial Policies and Procedures 
Manual. A member from Hebrew Public must approve the Head of School’s expense reimbursement forms 
before payment is made. 

Status as of June 30, 2018 
During our 2018 audit, there were no employee reimbursements to the Head of School. Therefore, we 
reviewed one employee reimbursement form submitted by the Director of Operations and one employee 
reimbursement form submitted by another employee. We noted proper approvals were attained for each 
reimbursement form tested.  

Bank Reconciliation 
During our audit, we noted there was no evidence of review on the bank statements or bank reconciliations showing 
that a member of Hebrew Public reviewed and approved the documents. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the Charter School update the procedures listed in their Financial Policies and Procedures 
Manual to include a signature. After receiving and reviewing the bank statements and bank reconciliations, the 
reviewer should sign their name indicating their approval. 

Status as of June 30, 2018 
During our 2018 audit, we reviewed a bank statement and related bank reconciliation noting that the 
reconciliation was initialed by the Board Treasurer signifying his review and approval.  
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Incentive Bonus Approval 
During our audit, we noted the incentive bonus was paid out in July 2017. We reviewed the board minutes from the 
school year and did not see any mention of bonuses throughout the minutes. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the Charter School follow the procedures listed in their Financial Policies and Procedures 
Manual. The Board must approve the bonus calculation and document their approval explicitly in the meeting 
minutes. 

Status as of June 30, 2018 
During our 2018 audit, we noted there were no bonuses paid out for the year ended June 30, 2018.  
Therefore there was no approval required. 

* * * * * 

We will review the status of this comment during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed this 
comment with the Charter School’s management, and will be pleased to discuss it in further detail at your 
convenience, to perform any additional study of this matter, or to assist you in implementing the recommendation. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of Management, Finance Committee Members 
and Board Members and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We appreciate the outstanding cooperation from your staff that our personnel received during the audit of the 
Charter School’s financial statements. Should you have any questions or comments, please contact Michelle Cain 
or Kate Welc. 

Very  truly  yours,  

MENGEL,  METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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EXTENSION FILING INSTRUCTIONS 

FORM 8868 FOR FORM 990 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING 

JUNE 30, 2018~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Prepared for MS. ELLY ROSENTHAL 
HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY 

Prepared by 
MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 

Amount due NOT APPLICABLE 

Make check 
payable to NOT APPLICABLE 

Mail extension 
and check (if 
applicable) to NOT APPLICABLE 

Extension 
must be mailed 
on or before 

NOT APPLICABLE 

Special 
Instructions THE EXTENSION FOR FORM 990 HAS QUALIFIED FOR ELECTRONIC 

FILING. FORM 8868 EXTENDS THE DUE DATE OF THE ORGANIZATION'S 
FORM 990 RETURN UNTIL MAY 15, 2019. THE EXTENSION HAS BEEN 
TRANSMITTED ELECTRONICALLY TO THE IRS AND NO FURTHER ACTION IS 
REQUIRED. 

FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE, PLEASE USE THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE TO 
RETURN THE SIGNED COPY OF FORM 8879-EO OR PREFERABLY FAX IT TO 
(585)423-5966 BY NOVEMBER 15, 2018. 

700085 
04-01-17 



     

Form 8868 Application for Automatic Extension of Time To File an 
(Rev. January 2017) Exempt Organization Return OMB No. 1545-1709

Department of the Treasury 
| File a separate application for each return. 

Internal Revenue Service | Information about Form 8868 and its instructions is at .www.irs.gov/form8868 

(e-file).Electronic filing You can electronically file Form 8868 to request a 6-month automatic extension of time to file any of the 

forms listed below with the exception of Form 8870, Information Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit 

Contracts, for which an extension request must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic 
www.irs.gov/efile e-file Charities and Non-Profits.filing of this form, visit , click on Charities & Non-Profits, and click on for 

Automatic 6-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (no copies needed).
 
All corporations required to file an income tax return other than Form 990-T (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts 

must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time to file income tax returns. 

Enter filer's identifying number 

Type or Name of exempt organization or other filer, see instructions. Employer identification number (EIN) or 
HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMYprint 
CHARTER SCHOOL 

File by the 
due date for Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions. Social security number (SSN) 
filing your 147 ST. NICHOLAS AVENUE 
return. See 
instructions. City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions. 

NEW YORK, NY 10026 
0 1Enter the Return Code for the return that this application is for (file a separate application for each return) _________________ 

Application Return Application Return 

Is For Code Is For Code 

Form 990 or Form 990-EZ 01 Form 990-T (corporation) 07 

Form 990-BL 02 Form 1041-A 08 

Form 4720 (individual) 03 Form 4720 (other than individual) 09 

Form 990-PF 04 Form 5227 10 

Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 11 

Form 990-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12 
LINDSAY MALANGA 
147 ST. NICHOLAS AVENUE - NEW YORK, NY 10026• The books are in the care of | 

Telephone No. | Fax No. | 

• If the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check this box~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | D 
• If this is for a Group Return, enter the organization's four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN) . If this is for the whole group, check this 

box | D . If it is for part of the group, check this box |D and attach a list with the names and EINs of all members the extension is for. 
MAY 15, 20191 I request an automatic 6-month extension of time until , to file the exempt organization return 

for the organization named above. The extension is for the organization's return for: 

|D calendar year or 
X JUL 1, 2017 JUN 30, 2018|D tax year beginning , and ending .
�

2 If the tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: D Initial return D Final return
�

D Change in accounting period
�

3a If this application is for Forms 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less any 

nonrefundable credits. See instructions. 3a $ 0. 
b If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and 

estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 3b $ 0. 
c Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, 

by using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions. 3c $ 0. 
Caution: If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EO and Form 8879-EO for payment 
instructions. 

LHA For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8868 (Rev. 1-2017) 

723841 04-01-17 

1.1 
13131101 781764 HAR4608 2017.04030 HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACAD HAR46081

www.irs.gov/efile


                

  

  

    

   

  

 

 

  

              

   

   

 

  

   

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

      

              

             

                 

    

  

  

  

  

        

 

        

P.O. Box 1393  

Buffalo, NY 14240-1393 

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY 

CHARTER SCHOOL 

ESCROW ACCOUNT 

147 S NICHOLAS AVENUE 

NEW YORK NY 100260000 

Questions?  

Call 1.877.472.2249 

TTY 1.800.898.5999 

us.hsbc.com  

Or write:  

HSBC  

P.O. Box 9  

Buffalo, New York 14240 

ACCOUNT NUMBER  

COMMERCIAL SAVINGS 

STATEMENT PERIOD 

03/31/18 TO 06/29/18 

HARLEM HEBREW LANGUAGE ACADEMY
 
CHARTER SCHOOL
 
ESCROW ACCOUNT
 

BEGINNING BALANCE 

$75,320.30 

DEPOSITS & OTHER ADDITIONS 

$32.14 

WITHDRAWALS & OTHER SUBTRACTIONS $0.00 

ENDING BALANCE 

$75,352.44 

ANNUAL PERCENTAGE YIELD EARNED 03/31/18 - 06/29/18 

0.17% 

INTEREST EARNED THIS PERIOD $32.50 

AVERAGE DAILY BALANCE 

$75,320.65 

INTEREST NOT AVAILABLE UNTIL CREDITED 

INTEREST PAID YEAR TO DATE $64.63 

DEPOSITS WITHDRAWALS  

DATE  

& OTHER   & OTHER  

POSTED DESCRIPTION OF TRANSACTIONS 

ADDITIONS SUBTRACTIONS 

BALANCE 

03/31/18 OPENING BALANCE� $75,320.30 

06/29/18 INTEREST PAID FROM 04/01/18 THRU 06/28/18� 32.14 $75,352.44 

06/29/18 

ENDING BALANCE $75,352.44 

All deposited items are credited subject to final payment. 

Please examine your statement at once. If you change your address, please notify us of your new address. 

HSBC Bank USA, N.A. (Rev. 6/2018) nMe 

Page 1 of 2 

http:75,352.44
http:75,352.44
http:75,320.30
http:75,320.65
http:75,352.44
http:75,320.30
http:us.hsbc.com


   

   

         

                      

             

                          

                    

                       

         

                             

 

         

                            

                         

                              

            

      

    

 

For Consumer Accounts Only:
 
IN CASE OF ERRORS OR QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR ELECTRONIC TRANSFERS
 
Electronic transfers (called transfers below) means a) deposits, withdrawals, or payments made at an ATM or store terminal, b) bill payer transfers
 
c) all other electronic transfers (e.g., payroll deposits, Social Security deposits, insurance payments, etc.).
 

If you think your statement or receipt is wrong, or if you need more information about a transfer on the statement or receipt, TELEPHONE US OR
 
WRITE TO US AS SOON AS YOU CAN -- USE THE TELEPHONE NUMBER OR ADDRESS ON THE FRONT OF THIS STATEMENT.
 

We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we sent you the FIRST statement on which the error or problem appeared.
 

(1) Tell us your name and account number (if any). 

(2) Describe the error or the transfer you are unsure about, and explain as clearly as you can why you believe there is an error or why you need 

more information. 

(3) Tell us the dollar amount of the suspected error. 

We will investigate your complaint and will correct any error promptly. If we take more than 10 business days to do this, we will recredit your account for 

the amount you think is in error, so that you will have the use of the money during the time it takes to complete our investigation. 

In case of any other error, like a forged or altered check or an error in a non-electronic deposit, you must report the error within 14 business days of the 

mailing or delivery of this statement or the account will be considered correct. 

© 2018 HSBC Bank USA, National Association  

HSBC Bank USA, National Association  

Member FDIC. 

Page 2 of 2 
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New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the
­

Board of Regents
­

2018-19 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

Funding by School District information for all NYS School district is located on the State Aid website 
at https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school 
districts. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 
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Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School
­
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019
­

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019
­
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

8,833,409 1,558,875 
7,771,542 2,115,093 
1,061,867 (556,218) 

437 52 
- -

OTHER 

-
-
-

FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

- 564,858 
- 820,745 
- (255,887) 

TOTAL 

10,957,142 
10,707,379 

249,763 
437 

-

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 
District of Location $15,307.00 
School District 2 (Enter Name) 
School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

6,708,633 -
- -
- -
- -
- -

6,708,633 

-
-
-
-
-

- 562,192 
- -
- -
- -
- -

562,192 

7,270,825 
-
-
-
-

7,270,825 

Special Education Revenue 
Grants 

Stimulus 
Other 

Other State Revenue 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 
IDEA Special Needs 
Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 
Other 

Other Federal Revenue 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 
Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 
Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

- 1,213,939 

- -
- -

1,564,262 211,277 
8,272,895 1,425,216 

- 54,082 
114,695 15,491 

9,416 1,272 
229,072 30,940 

138,759 18,741 
- -
- -

491,941 120,527 

8,810 1,190 
24,539 7,174 

71 21 
- -
- -

35,152 4,748 
- -

68,573 13,133 

8,833,409 1,558,875 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- -

- -
- -
- -

562,192 

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- 2,658 
- 8 
- -
- -
- -
- -

2,665 

564,858 

1,213,939 

-
-

1,775,539 
10,260,303 

54,082 
130,187 

10,687 
260,011 

157,500 
-
-

612,468 

10,000 
34,371 

100 
-
-

39,900 
-

84,371 

10,957,142 

EXPENSES 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 3.00 221,000 34,000 - - 85,000 340,000 
Instructional Management - - - - - - -
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 3.00 210,120 28,380 - - - 238,500 
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Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
Total Revenue 8,833,409 1,558,875 - - 564,858 

Total Expenses 7,771,542 2,115,093 - - 820,745 
Net Income 1,061,867 (556,218) - - (255,887) 

Actual Student Enrollment 437 52 
Total Paid Student Enrollment - -

TOTAL 

10,957,142 
10,707,379 

249,763 
437 

-

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 

CFO / Director of Finance - - - - - -
Operation / Business Manager 2.00 - - - - 127,500 
Administrative Staff 4.00 52,860 7,140 - - 123,250 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 12 483,981 69,519 335,750 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Teachers - Regular 32.00 1,977,855 124,645 - - -
Teachers - SPED 9.00 - 562,500 - - -
Substitute Teachers - - - - - -
Teaching Assistants 3.00 116,293 15,707 - - -
Specialty Teachers 7.00 395,132 53,368 - - -
Aides - - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 2.00 48,455 70,045 - - -
Other - Incentives - 78,410 10,590 - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 53 2,616,144 836,856 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Nurse - - - - - -
Librarian - - - - - -
Custodian - - - - - -
Security -
Other - - - - - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 65 3,100,125 906,375 335,750 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 
Payroll Taxes 268,161 78,401 - - 29,042 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 493,363 144,243 - - 53,432 
Retirement / Pension 65,103 19,034 - - 7,051 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 826,627 241,679 89,525 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 3,926,752 1,148,054 425,275 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Accounting / Audit - - - - 79,700 
Legal - - - - 7,500 
Management Company Fee 621,059 181,577 - - 67,262 
Nurse Services - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - - -
Payroll Services 5,497 1,607 - - 595 
Special Ed Services - - - - -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 123,019 22,893 - - 4,322 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 749,576 206,078 159,380 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

-
127,500 

183,250 

889,250 

2,102,500 
562,500 

-
132,000 
448,500 

-
118,500 

89,000 
3,453,000 

-
-
-
-
-

4,342,250 

375,605 
691,039 

91,187 
1,157,831 

5,500,081 

79,700 
7,500 

869,899 
-
-

7,700 
-
-

150,235 
1,115,034 
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Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

Board Expenses - - - - - -
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 129,186 17,449 - - - 146,635 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials - - - - - -
Textbooks / Workbooks 92,294 12,466 - - - 104,760 
Supplies & Materials other - - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture 18,634 5,448 - - 2,018 26,100 
Telephone 10,281 3,006 - - 1,113 14,400 
Technology 24,365 3,533 - - 167 28,065 
Student Testing & Assessment 9,378 1,267 - - - 10,645 
Field Trips 7,048 952 - - - 8,000 
Transportation (student) 107,483 14,517 - - - 122,000 
Student Services - other 74,886 10,114 - - - 85,000 
Office Expense 22,132 6,471 - - 2,397 31,000 
Staff Development 130,302 21,187 - - 2,470 153,960 
Staff Recruitment 4,284 1,252 - - 464 6,000 
Student Recruitment / Marketing 49,689 6,711 - - - 56,400 
School Meals / Lunch 224,276 30,292 - - - 254,568 
Travel (Staff) 4,284 1,252 - - 464 6,000 
Fundraising - - - - - -
Other - School Operations 1,142 334 - - 124 1,600 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 909,664 136,252 9,218 1,055,133 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
Insurance 42,002 12,280 - - 4,549 58,830 
Janitorial - - - - - -
Building and Land Rent / Lease 1,576,175 460,822 - - 170,703 2,207,700 
Repairs & Maintenance 210,197 61,455 - - 22,765 294,416 
Equipment / Furniture -
Security 95,159 13,547 - - 478 109,185 
Utilities 137,077 40,077 - - 14,846 192,000 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 2,060,610 588,181 213,341 2,862,131 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 124,940 36,528 - - 13,531 175,000 
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 7,771,542 2,115,093 820,745 10,707,379 

NET INCOME 1,061,867 (556,218) - - (255,887) 249,763 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 

District of Location 437 52 437 
School District 2 (Enter Name) -
School District 3 (Enter Name) -
School District 4 (Enter Name) -
School District 5 (Enter Name) -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 8,833,409 1,558,875 - - 564,858 10,957,142 
Total Expenses 7,771,542 2,115,093 - - 820,745 10,707,379 

Net Income 1,061,867 (556,218) - - (255,887) 249,763 
Actual Student Enrollment 437 52 437 

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

  

  

     
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 437 52 437 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 20,214 29,978 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 17,784 40,675 -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 8,833,409 1,558,875 - - 564,858 10,957,142 
Total Expenses 7,771,542 2,115,093 - - 820,745 10,707,379 

Net Income 1,061,867 (556,218) - - (255,887) 249,763 
Actual Student Enrollment 437 52 437 

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

        

    

     

   

  

         

        

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

9 (20-60) + 43 (>60%) 

Facilities funding & NYS Grant Appropriation 

$1000 x SpEd >60% 

NYSTL, NYLIB, NYSSL 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

Head of School (1), Assistant Head of School (2) 

Coordinator of Student Services, DCI- Hebrew, Dean of Culture 



  
         

          
 

   
    

   
    

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Director of Operations 
DOO, Office Manager, Community Relations, Tech Associate, Ops Associate, Ops 
Assistant 

General (17) & Hebrew (13) Teachers/ Math & Literacy Coach (2) 
SpEd Teachers 

TA (2) Floater (1) 
Music& Art, PE, Reading, ELL 

Social Worker, Behavior Specialist 
Training stipends and PTO Buyouts 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School

Education Corporation Trustee 


Trustee Name: 

Sara Bloom (Berman) 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 
Vice-Chair 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes  __X__No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes __X__No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month   
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, 
you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in

discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 
None. 



 

  
 

 
  

 
  

   
   

 

      
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write 
None. 

Organization Nature of Approxim Name of Trustee and/or 
conducting business ate value immediate family

business with 
the school(s) 

conducted of the 
business 

conducted 
 member of household 

holding an interest in the 
organization conducting

business with the 
school(s) and the nature 

of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

Hebrew Public Charter 
Management

Organization of 
Harlem Hebrew 

$200,000 
(Donation) 

Sara Bloom (Self) Notified both 
boards of my 
membership 

on each; 
recused 

myself from 
votes where 
any potential

conflict 
would arise 

Signature Date 
May 29, 2018 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Tel 

Business Ad 

E-mail Addre 



Home Telepho
 

Home Address
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Board of Trustees Annual Meeting 

July 12, 2017
 

6:30 PM
 

258 West 118th Street
 

New York, NY 10026
 

Minutes
 

Trustees Present Trustees Not Present
 

William Allen Sara Bloom 

Linda Aristondo Dan Cohen 

Giovanna Delucchi* 
Basil Smikle 

Linda Tarry-Chard 

Michael Walrond 

Celia Wickham 

Also Present: 
Marni Aarlev, Co-Chair of the PTO 
Lindsay Malanga, Head of School* 
Jon Rosenberg, President and CEO of Hebrew Public 
2 Harlem Hebrew Parents 

*by phone (doesn’t count for quorum) 



 
   

      
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
   

  
 

  
  

   
   

   
  

 
   

   
  

 
  

    
  

  
 

   
  

  
   

 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
Linda Aristondo called the meeting to order at 6:37 pm and reminded everyone in attendance 
to sign up for public comments if they wished to speak. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 
The July 2017 Agenda could not be adopted as quorum was not present. The agenda will be 
adopted at the next board meeting where there is a quorum. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
The June 2017 minutes could not be approved as quorum was not present. The agenda will be 
adopted at the next board meeting where there is a quorum. 

4. Enrollment for 2017-2018 
The board was informed as to the number of enrolled students for the next school year. The 
number of enrolled students was robust with higher than expected enrollments in the 1st, 2nd, 
3rd and 4th grades. The incoming Kindergarten class was projected to be less than anticipated, 
necessitating the school to plan for 2 sections in Kindergarten instead of the usual 3. 
Additionally, the board was updated about staffing for the upcoming school year. Greater 
diversity will exist amongst the staff than in previous years.  As some staff positions remain 
open, Robin Natman, Director of Talent Acquisition at Hebrew Public is working with Lindsay 
to fill those positions by the end of the summer. 

5. Charter Renewal 
The board was informed that the charter renewal application was due by August 1st .  School 
leadership, staff at Hebrew Public and a consultant firm employed for this project are all 
working together to get the application completed. The renewal would seek a middle school 
expansion for grades 6-8. While the school is optimistic that the expansion will be granted the 
expansion, it is also preparing continency plans in case it is not. Board members and parents 
were encouraged to speak to their local congressman and representatives to advocate for the 
school’s renewal and expansion. 

6. Parent Teacher Organization Comments 
Marni Aarlev, Co-Chair of the PTO, informed the board that the first two public forums for the 
upcoming school year have been scheduled: Tuesday, October 10th at 530 pm and Wednesday, 
December 13th at 815 am with more to be scheduled at the beginning of the school year. 



 
 

 
    

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

 

 

 

7. Public Comments 
2 Harlem Parents, graciously offered to assist in helping gain neighborhood approval for the 
closure of 117th street to traffic for a few hours during the school day so that the children 
could take recess outdoors. 

8. Staff Comments 
None. 

9. Executive Session 
None. 

10. Adjournment 
Linda Aristondo closed the meeting at 7:38 pm. 



 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

      

  
 

 
  

  
  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

 
 

 

 

 

 

Board of Trustees Annual Meeting 

August 9, 2017
 

6:30 PM
 

258 West 118th Street
 

New York, NY 10026
 

Minutes
 

Trustees Present Trustees Not Present
 

William Allen 

Giovanna Delluchi Linda Aristondo 

Sara Bloom 
Basil Smikle 

Dan Cohen 

Michael Walrond 

Linda Tarry-Chard 
Celia Wickham 

Also Present: 
Marni Aarlev, Co-Chair of the PTO 
Shane Goldstein-Smith, Chief Schools Officer for Hebrew Public 
Lindsay Malanga, Head of School 
Elyse Piker, Director for School Operations for Hebrew Public 



  
      

 
 

  
   

 
 

  
 

 
  

   
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

   
  

  
   

    
 

  
   

    
    

      
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
Linda Aristondo called the meeting to order at 6:36 pm and reminded everyone in attendance 
to sign up for public comments if they wished to speak. 

2. Adoption of Agenda(s) 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to adopt the July 2017 agenda, Sara Bloom seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

Linda Aristondo made a motion to the adopt the August 2017 agenda, Dan Cohen seconded 
and the motion carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to approve the June 2017 minutes, Linda Tarry-Chard 
seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

Linda Aristondo made a motion to approve the July 2017 minutes, William Allen seconded and 
the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Board Update: 

•	 Parent/Guardian Board Member Nominee Update 
Sara Bloom notified the board that the governance committee is in the process 
of vetting the nominees for this position. The governance committees hope to 
have a recommendation to the board shortly. 

•	 Live Streaming at Board Meeting 
Elyse Piker notified the board that the school was working to see if it is feasible 
to have a live stream at the board meetings for those who cannot attend the 
meeting in person. A trial run would take place at the September board meeting. 

•	 Board Notes 
Linda Aristondo addressed the desire to have a meeting summary available to 
parents well in advance of the next month board meeting (when official meeting 
minutes are approved). As such, someone from the PTO or Hebrew Public staff 
will take informal notes and work with the board to get them out to the school 
community. 



 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
    

 
 

  
  

 
  

  
 

  
  

 

 
 

 

   
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5. Staffing Update 
Lindsay Malanga informed the board that most of the vacant staff positions for the upcoming 
school year had been filled. A few vacancies remained in the special education and Hebrew 
language department with scheduled interviews for candidates taking place next week. 

6. Enrollment Update for 2017-2018 
Elyse Piker updated the board that approx. 449 students were enrolled for the upcoming 
school year. Recruitment efforts continue in anticipation of customary slight attrition prior to 
the school year’s start. Board members volunteered to assist in the recruitment effort by 
visiting community centers with school brochures and speaking with parents. 

7. Facilities/Construction Update 
Elyse Piker informed the board that construction was on schedule and would not impact the 
beginning of the school year. The new building’s foundation and structure had been completed 
and the demolition of the north side of the school was on schedule and was to be followed by 
the south side. Construction of the classrooms and the roof play area were on track to be 
completed during the course of 2018. The parent community would be receiving updates about 
the construction shortly. 

8. Outdoor Play-space Update 
Lindsay Malanga informed the board that each class had been scheduled with outside recess at 
various local parks for the beginning of the school year. Efforts were still underway for a local 
street closing for a few hours during the school say. 

9. PTO Comments 
Marni Aarlev, Co-Chair of the PTO discussed efforts by the PTO to recruit parents to set up 
their children’s classrooms prior to the beginning of the school year. She also informed the 
board of upcoming fundraisers and parent/teacher forums. She further engaged the board about 
improving communications between the school staff and parent community. School staff 
assured the board that efforts were underway to update mailing lists, improve the frequency of 
communications and outfit the main office with bulletin boards with pertinent announcements. 

10. Public Comments 
None. 

11. Staff Comments 
None. 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

12. Executive Session 
None. 

12. Adjournment 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to adjourn. Dan Cohen seconded and the meeting was 
adjourned at 7:31pm. 



 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

      

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

    
 

  
   

 

  
  

 
 

 

 

 
 

Board of Trustees Annual Meeting 

September 13, 2017
 

6:30 PM
 

147 Saint Nicholas Avenue
 

New York, NY 10026
 

Minutes
 

Trustees Present Trustees Not Present
 

William Allen 

Giovanna Delluchi Linda Aristondo 

Sara Bloom 
Michael Walrond 

Dan Cohen 

Basil Smikle 

Celia Wickham 
Linda Tarry-Chard 

Also Present: 
Meghan Barrios, Associate Director of Curriculum and Instruction, Mathematics for Hebrew 
Public 
Mark Fink, Hebrew Public 
Tiffany Goldberg, Co-Chair of the PTO 
Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman, Prospective Parent/Guardian Board Member 
Jordan Grant, Director of Curriculum and Instruction, Literacy for Hebrew Public 
Michelle Laitner, Parent liaison to the Afterschool program, Roads to Success 
Lindsay Malanga, Head of School 
Elyse Piker, Director for School Operations for Hebrew Public 
Jon Rosenberg, Hebrew Public 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
      

  
   

 
 

  
   

 
 

  
    

 
 

  
  

  
   

 
 

  
  

  
    

   
   

  
  

  
   

  
   

3 Harlem Parents 

1. Call to Order 
Linda Aristondo called the meeting to order at 6:33 pm and reminded everyone in attendance 
to sign up for public comments if they wished to speak. Linda also announced that the board 
meetings going forward would be live streamed on the Harlem Hebrew YouTube Channel, the 
website of which was sent out to the Harlem Hebrew community. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to adopt the September 2017 agenda, Basil Smikle seconded 
and the motion carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to approve the August 2017 minutes, Linda Tarry-Chard 
seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Board Update: 

a. Opening week update 
Lindsay Malanga informed the board that the school year was off to a great start. She 
updated the board on school affairs such as bussing and bus monitors, dismissal 
procedures, playground and recess developments, a middle school parent/staff 
meeting that took place regarding next year’s options for older students and MAP 
testing which commenced earlier this week. 
b. 2017 State Assessment results 
The board and staff discussed the spring 2017 state testing results.. Harlem 
Hebrew’s student performance substantially improved from the prior year, with 
proficiency in English increasing by 10 percentage points, and in Math by 20. 
c. Renewal Application Update 
Jon Rosenberg informed the board that the application for a renewal of the school’s 
charter and an expansion to allow the School to serve grades K-8 had been 
submitted on August 1. A decision on the renewal is expected between February 
and April 2018, and Hebrew Public leadership is optimistic about the outcome. 
d. 9/18 Renewal Hearing 



  
  

   
   

  
   

    

  
   

  
   

   
  

 
    

  

 

   
    

 
 

 
  

    
   

  

   

 
  

  
  

   
 

    
 

The board was informed about a public hearing to be held on Monday, September 
18th at 530 pm at the school, at which individuals can express their views about the 
school’s renewal request. Parents were encouraged to attend. 
e. Monthly Dashboard Review
 
The Board reviewed the School’s monthly data dashboard.
 
f. Parent Communications 
Lindsay Malanga informed the Board that regular communications were going out via 
email to parents on Friday and repeated on Monday. Additionally messages were 
being put in the student’s backpacks to be sent home. The school is regularly 
updating its contact list and is looking into purchasing an electronic message board 
for the front office for regular school announcements. 
g. Grant Announcement 
Dan Cohen announced that the Manhattan Borough President’s Office has awarded 
Harlem Hebrew a grant of $100,000 for the fiscal year 2018 for the Classroom 
Technology Upgrades Project. He thanked everyone who helped contribute to the 
success of the grant. 
h. Parent Board Member Nomination 
Sara Bloom informed the board that after a comprehensive search process, the 
Governance committee was pleased to recommend Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman as 
the parent/guardian board member for the 2017-2018 school year. Ms. Goldberg-
Drossman is the parent of two Harlem Hebrew students; a 1st and 3rd grader, and is 
currently the Executive Director of Marketing for Martha Stewart Living Media 
Brands. Ms. Goldberg-Drossman has extensive board experience and will make an 
excellent addition to the Harlem Hebrew Board. 

5. Action Items: 
a. Approval of parent/guardian board member for 2017-2018 school year. 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to accept the Governance committee’s 
recommendation and approve the nomination of Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman as the 
Harlem Hebrew Parent/Guardian Board Member, Ex-Officio for the 2017-2018 
school year pending approval from the authorizer. Dan Cohen abstained. Linda 
Tarry-Chard seconded and the motion carried unanimously by all the other board 
members present. 
b. Approval of bonus payout of $145,350 for the 40+ staff asked to return for the 
2017-2018 school year. 
Dan Cohen made a motion to approve the bonus payout of $145,350 for the 40+ 
staff asked to return for the 2017-2018 school year, as per the 2016-2017-school 
budget. He added that going forward the school would use a stipend and career 
pathways model rather than a bonus structure. William Allen seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. 



 
  

   
     

   
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
  

 
 

  
    
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
   

 
 

 

 

6. PTO Comments 
Tiffany Goldberg, Co-Chair of the PTO informed the board of ongoing efforts by the PTO to 
raise money to support school activities by asking parents for one time donations at the 
beginning of the year rather than repeatedly during the year. She added that the PTO had 
scheduled forums for both teachers and parents to meet and discuss student issues. The PTO 
would be present at the school charter renewal interview and submit a letter of support to the 
authorizer as well. 

Michelle Laitner, the parent liaison to the school’s afterschool program, Roads to Success, 
discussed the difficulty in getting the program off the ground during the school’s first week. 
However, she added that improvements in communication with the program directors and the 
PTO were rectifying the situation. 

7. Public Comments 
None. 

8. Staff Comments 
None. 

9. Executive Session 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to enter into executive session to discuss a personnel matter. 
William Allen seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

Basil Smikle made a motion to leave executive session. Dan Cohen seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

No votes or board actions were taken during this time. 

10. Adjournment 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to adjourn. Dan Cohen seconded and the meeting was 
adjourned at 8:02 pm. 



 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

      

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
  

  
  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

October 10, 2017
 

6:30 PM
 

147 Saint Nicholas Avenue
 

New York, NY 10026
 

Minutes
 

Trustees Present Trustees Not Present
 

Linda Aristondo William Allen 

Dan Cohen 

Linda Tarry-Chard 
Sara Bloom 

Giovanna Delluchi 

Basil Smikle 

Michael Walrond 

Celia Wickham 

Also Present: 
Marni Aarlev, Co-Chair of PTO 
Mark Fink, Hebrew Public 
Tiffany Goldberg, Co-Chair of the PTO 
Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman, Prospective Parent/Guardian Board Member 
Lindsay Malanga, Head of School 
Stephanie Mauterstcok, Consultant 
Paul O’Neil,  Consultant 
Jon Rosenberg, Hebrew Public 
5 Harlem Parents 



  
  

 
  

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

 
   

   

 
 

   
 

  
   

  
  

   
    
    

 
  
  
     

 
 

   

1. Call to Order 
Linda Aristondo opened the meeting at 6:41 pm. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 
The agenda could not be adopted as quorum was not present. It will be adopted at the next 
meeting where there is a quorum. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
The minutes could not be approved as quorum was not present. They will be approved at the 
next meeting where there is a quorum. 

4. Board Update: 
a.	 Renewal Application Update 

The board was informed about the renewal and application into middle school 
for the school. The authorizer, NYSED, set Friday, November 3rd for the 
interview of the Harlem Board. Two sessions for board member prep were 
scheduled to take place immediately following this board meeting and again on 
Wednesday, October 25th 

b.	 Monthly Dashboard Review 
The board was updated about the school’s dashboard which had been previously 
posted on the school’s website. School leadership discussed enrollment, staffing, 
test scores and budgetary matters. 

5. PTO Comments 
PTO leadership updated the board on the following topics that the PTO has been working on: 

a.	 Weekly calls between the PTO and the parent coordinator to make sure the parent and 
student contact data is up to date 

b.	 Coffee chats set up for the PTO and parents to meet with the parent coordinator 
c.	 Diversity work – discussing change and growth in the community with the teachers and 

students and ongoing theme that will take place both in and out of the classroom 
d.	 Reaching out to parents in need of guidance and assistance 
e.	 PTO meetings to take place on Saturdays or Weeknights for those unable to participate 

on Sundays 
f.	 $3,000 of a $10,000 raised for the PTO (vs. $400 at the same time last year) 
g.	 Surveys sent to parents asking about areas they want addressed by the PTO 
h.	 Day trips – the first scheduled for Sunday, October 29th for families to socialize and 

build relationships 

Linda Aristondo and Linda Tarry-Chard thanked the PTO for their ongoing efforts. 



 
  

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 

 

 

6. Public Comments 
None. 

7. Staff Comments 
None. 

8. Executive Session 
None. 

9. Adjournment 
Linda Aristondo closed the meeting at 7:15 pm. 



 
 

 
 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
      

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

  

  
 

  

 
 

 

  

Board of Trustees Meeting 

November 15, 2017
 

6:30 PM
 

147 Saint Nicholas Avenue
 

New York, NY 10026
 

Minutes
 

Trustees Present Trustees Not Present
 

William Allen Sara Bloom 

Linda Aristondo Dan Cohen 

Giovanna Delluchi* 
Michael Walrond 

Basil Smikle 

Linda Tarry-Chard Celia Wickham 

*via video conference 

Also Present: 
Mark Fink, Hebrew Public 
Tiffany Goldberg, Co-Chair of the PTO 
Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman, Prospective Parent/Guardian Board Member, Ex-Officio 
Shane Goldstein-Smith, Hebrew Public 
Michelle Laitner, Parent liaison to the Afterschool program, Roads to Success 
Lindsay Malanga, Head of School 
Jon Rosenberg, Hebrew Public 
Elly Rosenthal, Hebrew Public 
Alicia Taylor, PTO Chair of the Diversity Committee 
1 Harlem Parent 



 
 
 
 

  
      

  
 

  
    

  
 

  
     

 
 

  
    

  
      

 
  

  
  

  
   

 
 

 
  

 
 

    
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
Linda Aristondo called the meeting to order at 6:06 pm and reminded everyone in attendance 
to sign up for public comments if they wished to speak. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to adopt the October and November 2017 agenda(s), Basil 
Smikle seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to approve the September and October 2017 minutes, Linda 
Tarry-Chard seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Board Update: 
a. Renewal Application Update 

The board was informed that the Harlem Hebrew renewal and middle school 
expansion application had been concluded following the authorizer school visit 
and interviews having taken place in early November. Decisions from the 
authorizer were expected in the early Spring. 

b. Monthly Dashboard Review 
The board reviewed the school dashboard noting data from the previous month 
on enrollment, staff vacancies, board attendance and other demographics. 

c. Facilities Update 
The board was updated on the progress made on the construction of the new 
school addition. While the project has been running on time, the board was 
informed that the outdoor play space which was slated to be completed in 
January/February 2018, would now be completed in July/August 2018. The 
school leadership informed the board that alternative outdoor places are being 
and would continue to be used until constriction was complete. 

d. Actual v Budget thru September 2017 with Year End Projections 
The board was informed about revisions to the budget based on enrollment. The 
CMO and school leadership continue to work together to anticipate budgetary 
changes months in advance. The Finance and Audit committee met in advance of 
the board meeting to approve any such changes. 



   
  

  
   

  
  

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

 

 
 

   
 

  
 

    
     

                   
   

  
      

   
   

  

   
 

  
 

 
  

 
    

  
  

5. Action Items 
a. Acceptance of the audited financial reports as of June 30, 2017 

Linda Aristondo made a motion to accept the finance and audit committee’s 
recommendation and approve the audited financial reports as of June 30, 2017. 
William Allen seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

b.	 Approval of 2017-2018 revised budget 
After a discussion, Linda Aristondo made a motion to accept the finance and 
audit committee’s recommendation and approve the revised budget for the 
2017-2018 school year. Linda Tarry-Chard seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

c.	 Approval to amend the charter to update the school  academic 
leadership structure 
After a discussion of the proposed changes, Linda Aristondo made a motion to 
amend the charter application to update the school’s academic leadership 
structure pending approval from the authorizer. Basil Smikle seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. In doing so, the board passed the following 
resolution: 

Revised Structure of Academic Leadership 

November 15, 2017 

The resolution hereinafter set forth as the action of the Board of Trustees of HARLEM HEBREW 
LANGUAGE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL (the “School”) have been duly adopted at a meeting of 
the Board of Trustees of the School (the “Board”) duly called and held for such purpose, and do hereby 
direct that these Resolutions be filed in the minute book of the School: 

WHEREAS, Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School (the “School”) was granted a charter by 
the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Authorizer") on June 19, 2012 to 
operate pursuant to its charter application (the "Application") which was incorporated by reference into 
the Charter Agreement (the "Agreement") signed by and between the Authorizer and the School on July 
16, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, the school leadership has concluded that Harlem Hebrew should implement a revised 
structure of academic leadership of the General Studies and Special Education programs in order to 
improve the quality of the schools education 

WHEREAS, together these changes will more clearly route accountability for instructional outcomes and 
maximize the instructional expertise of staff 

THEREFORE, beginning in the fall of 2017 the Head of School will remain responsible for all aspects of 
curriculum, instruction, assessment, teacher support, evaluation and PD, and is ultimately responsible for 
the academic outcomes of the school 



 
 

  
 

   
 

    
 

 
 

   
  

   
 
 

  
 

 
    

 
  
  
  

 
  
  
  

 
  
  

  
   

 
  

 

THEREFORE, the Director of Curriculum and Instruction will be replaced with two Academic Deans, 
one for grades K-2 and one for grades 3-5. The Academic Deans will focus exclusively on coaching and 
developing teachers to ensure consistently effective teaching for both general and special education 
programs; the Academic Deans will not be responsible for teacher supervision or any administrative 
responsibilities 

Be it RESOLVED, that the aforementioned academic leadership structure will be amended to this order 
in the school’s charter renewal application. 

d.	 Approval of Parent Board Member Ex-Officio Vanessa Goldberg-
Drossman 
Upon review of the fingerprint and background reports issued by an NYSED 
approved vendor, Linda Aristondo made a motion to elect Vanessa Goldberg-
Drossman to the board as the parent board member ex officio pending NYSED 
approval. Giovanna Delluchi seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

6. PTO Comments 
Tiffany Goldberg, Co-Chair of the PTO informed the board of ongoing activities of the PTO. 
She briefly discussed: 

a.	 The executive committee meetings which took place this week and would take place 
again the week of 11/30 

b.	 Sessions for interested parents by a Harlem Hebrew parent social worker 
c.	 A Book Fair taking place in early December 
d. Fundraising efforts by the PTO by selling school swag 

Michelle Laitner, the parent liaison to the school’s afterschool program, Roads to Success, 
discussed the improvements made since the program began in September. She briefly touched 
on: 

a.	 Different club options for the students 
b.	 Easier registration for parents 
c.	 Coupons and reduced prices for those who could only partake of the program on some 

days 
d.	 Financial Aid and scholarships for families in need 
e. More outside programs 

Alicia Taylor, PTO Chair of the Diversity Committee discussed ongoing efforts by the PTO to 
bring families of different backgrounds together. There was a meeting in October and one 
tentatively scheduled for January 17th where the PTO has asked Reverend Linda Tarry-Chard of 
the board to help lead the meeting as she had in the past. The meeting would focus on diversity in 
afterschool activities as well in the curriculum. Lindsay Malanga offered that the diversity 



 
 

 
  

    
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
     

  
 

 

 

committee should speak with teacher Dina Pantuso who is in charge of diversity in the curriculum 
about working together. 

7. Public Comments 
1 Harlem Parent asked about the school’s mission statement and the school’s goals. 

8. Staff Comments 
None. 

9. Executive Session 
None. 

10. Adjournment 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to adjourn. Basil Smikle seconded and the meeting was 
adjourned at 7:47 pm. 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

      

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 
 

 

 

  

 

  

  

Board of Trustees Meeting 

January 10, 2018
 

6:30 PM
 

147 Saint Nicholas Avenue
 

New York, NY 10026
 

Minutes
 

Trustees Present Trustees Not Present
 

William Allen 

Giovanna Delucchi Linda Aristondo 

Sara Bloom 

Dan Cohen Basil Smikle 

Linda Tarry-Chard Michael Walrond 

*via phone conference 

Also Present: 
Mark Fink, Hebrew Public 
Tiffany Goldberg, Co-Chair, PTO 
Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman, Prospective Parent/Guardian Board Member, Ex-Officio 
Shane Goldstein-Smith, Hebrew Public 
Valerie Khaytina, Hebrew Public* 
Lindsay Malanga, Head of School 
Natasha Pollen, PTO Member 
Jon Rosenberg, Hebrew Public 
Alicia Taylor, PTO Diversity Committee Chair 



 
 
 

  
 

  
 

  
   

  
 

  
  
  

 
   

 
   

  
  

 
   

  
   
    

 
     

    
  

  
  

 
 

   
   

 
    
       
   

1 Harlem Hebrew Community Member 

1. Call to Order 
Linda Aristondo opened the meeting at 6:37 pm and reminded everyone in attendance to sign 
up for public comments if they wished to speak. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to adopt the December 2017 and January 2018 agendas, 
respectively. Dan Cohen seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to approve the November and December 2017 minutes, 
respectively. Sara Bloom seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Charter Renewal Update 
The School’s renewal will be determined by the New York State Board of Regents at the 
Regents’ January 22-23rd meeting.  Hebrew Public leadership is hopeful of a 5-year renewal with 
the requested grade expansion to become a full K-8 school, with a new 6th grade added in Fall 
2018. 

5. Head of School Update 
Lindsay Malanga updated the Board about: 

a.	 Lice checks, which took place the week of January 8th. 

b.	 Winter MAP testing , noting that the Board will receive an analysis of the MAP results at 
its February meeting 

c.	 Harlem-related activities and Black History Month, including field trips to the Apollo 
Theater and upcoming Harlem Day activities. Friday, January 12th will be early dismissal 
for the students so that the teachers can have a professional development workshop 
with Ramapo for Children, who are observing classes on Thursday January 11th. 
Ramapo’s work will also include ongoing coaching. 

d.	 The next PTO meeting is scheduled for the current week. Additionally, a PTO
 
sponsored diversity meeting is set to take place on January 18th.
 

6. PTO Comments 
Tiffany Goldberg briefed the board on the following events set to take place at Harlem 
Hebrew: 

a.	 Family Fundays taking place throughout the year 
b.	 Movie nights at Harlem Hebrew for both the younger and older grades 
c.	 Magic shows for the younger grades throughout the winter/spring 



  
  
  
  
  

      
 

  
  

 
   

 
  

 
   

 
 

  
    

 
 

     
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
 

d.	 Skate dates for families throughout the winter 
e.	 A Community Board meeting in March 
f.	 Trips to Camp Sahlog in the springtime 
g.	 End of the year picnics in May/June 
h.	 Art shows 
i.	 Tu B’shvat celebration of trees and plants on January 30th for current and prospective 

Harlem Hebrew families 
j.	 Potential fundraisers in the spring featuring children’s art projects 
k.	 Diversity training for families throughout the remainder of the year 

7. Public Comments 
1 Harlem Hebrew Community Member asked about tutorials, after-school programs and 
community resources provided by the school for children with special educational needs 

8. Staff Comments 
None. 

9. Executive Session 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to go into executive session to discuss a personnel issue. Linda 
Tarry-Chard seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

Linda Aristondo made a motion to go out of executive session. Dan Cohen seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

No votes or actions were taken during this time. 

10. Adjournment 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to adjourn. William Allen seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 7:43 pm. 



 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

      

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

  

 

  

  

Board of Trustees Meeting 

February 7, 2018
 

6:30 PM
 

147 Saint Nicholas Avenue
 

New York, NY 10026
 

Minutes
 

Trustees Present Trustees Not Present
 

William Allen 

Dan Cohen Linda Aristondo 

Sara Bloom 

Basil Smikle Giovanna Delucchi 

Linda Tarry-Chard Michael Walrond 

Also Present: 
Meghan Barrios, Hebrew Public 
Mark Fink, Hebrew Public 
Tiffany Goldberg, Co-Chair, PTO 
Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman, Prospective Parent/Guardian Board Member, Ex-Officio 
Shane Goldstein-Smith, Hebrew Public 
Jordan Grant, Hebrew Public 
Lindsay Malanga, Head of School 
5 Harlem Hebrew Community Members 



  
    

  
 

  
     

 
 

  
   

  
 

    
   

   
   

    
 

 
  

  
  

 
  

  
 

  
   

 
  
 

  
 

   
 

     
 

   
 
 

1. Call to Order 
Linda Aristondo called the meeting to order at 6:36 pm and reminded everyone in attendance 
to sign up for public comments if they wished to speak. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 
William Allen made a motion to adopt the February 2018 agenda. Basil Smikle seconded and 
the motion carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
William Allen made a motion to approve the January 2018 minutes. Sara Bloom seconded and 
the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Charter Expansion/Renewal Update 
The board was informed that Harlem Hebrew’s charter was renewed for an additional 4 year 
term through June 2022. In addition, the school was granted an expansion into middle school 
for grades 6-8. The board thanked school leadership, the CMO, the PTO and the community 
for all of their hard work and congratulated everyone on their shared success. 

5.  Construction Update 
The board was informed that construction of the new building was continuing as planned. The 
construction of new bathrooms was about to commence with completion of the new building 
set to be ready for the inaugural 6th grade middle school class in the fall. 

6. Head of School Update 
Lindsay Malanga updated the Board about MAP testing scores which has been released to the 
parents in late January. Lindsay discussed areas of growth from last year especially in the K and 
5th grades, as well as areas that required further growth particularly in students receiving free 
or reduced lunch. Early diagnostic testing was implemented so that the instructional team could 
strategize in advance of spring state testing.  Lindsay and the instructional team expressed 
confidence that recently expanded small group learning in the classrooms would prove 
successful with student’s growth. Additionally, the school has made tutoring available for all 
students. 

7. Community Resources Update 
The board was informed that the PTO, School Leadership and Linda Tarry-Chard as board 
representative, met to begin compiling a guide that would serve as a resource for all members 
of the community. The guide will be comprised of educational, social and community resources 
and will continue to be filled and updated. This new resource will be available as needed. 



 
  

  
 

  
  

     
 

 
 

    
 

 
 

  
  

 
   

 
  

   
 

 
  

 
 

  
   

  
 
 

8. PTO Comments 
Tiffany Goldberg briefed the board on the following: 

a.	 The first school wide PTO meeting took place recently with large community
 
participation. More meetings were set to take place in the coming months.
 

b.	 An upcoming movie night at Harlem Hebrew for grades 3-5 will feature the motion 
picture: Wonder. 

c.	 The recent PTO sponsored magic show for the K-2 students was a huge success with 
large student turnout. 

d.	 The PTO continues to make inroads into fostering diversity at the school with the PTO 
diversity committee meeting regularly and hosting events at the school for both staff and 
parents. 

e.	 Harlem Day is set to take place at the school on 2/16. This event will feature an entire 
day dedicated to showcasing the community, with a special tribute to recently deceased 
board member and long-time community resident, Celia Wickham. The entire board is 
invited to attend. 

f.	 Trips to Camp Sahlog are scheduled for May. 

9. Public Comments 
1 Harlem Hebrew Community Member asked about the PTO and its relationship with the 
school and the board. 

10. Staff Comments 
None. 

11. Adjournment 
William Allen made a motion to adjourn. Linda Tarry-Chard seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 7:09 pm. 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
       

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

April 11, 2018
 

6:30 PM
 

147 Saint Nicholas Avenue
 

New York, NY 10026
 

Minutes 

William Allen 

Giovanna Delucchi Linda Aristondo 

Sara Bloom 

Linda Tarry-Chard 

Dan Cohen 
Michael Walrond 

Trustees Present Trustees Not Present 

Also Present: 
Mark Fink, Hebrew Public 
Tiffany Goldberg, Co-Chair, PTO 
Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman, Prospective Parent/Guardian Board Member, Ex-Officio 
Shane Goldstein-Smith, Hebrew Public 
Roger Katz, Hebrew Public 
Lindsay Malanga, Head of School 



  
    

  
 

  
      

 
 

  
   

 
 

    
  

   
  

  
   

   
 

    
 

   
  

    

 

   
 

 
   

   
  

  
  

 
  
 
 

1. Call to Order 
Linda Aristondo called the meeting to order at 6:31 pm and reminded everyone in attendance 
to sign up for public comments if they wished to speak. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 
William Allen made a motion to adopt the April 2018 agenda. Sara Bloom seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
William Allen made a motion to approve the February 2018 minutes. Dan Cohen seconded and 
the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Leadership Update: 
•	 Harlem Day Update 

The Board was updated as to the festivities of Harlem Day, which took place on 
February 16. Community members, representatives and businesspeople were in 
attendance. The children honored late board member, Celia Wickham with a 
collage in her honor in the presence of her family and friends. 

•	 Dashboard Review 
The board was updated about school statistics as of the end of March 2018. The 
board discussed student suspension rates, attendance rates, and enrollment data 
for next year. 

•	 IB Middle School Progress Update 
The board was updated as to the progress of the International Baccalaureate 
Middle Years Programme (IBM YP) application which when approved will begin 
implementation in the coming school year. Staff with IB MYP experience as well 
as consultants would help implement the program whose devotion to academic 
excellence and creating global citizens is aligned with the school’s mission. 
Lindsay Malanga as HOS had already begun attending trainings on the program 
with staff to follow. More information would be forthcoming in the following 
months. 

•	 Student Recruitment/Lottery Update 
The lottery for the next school year took place immediately prior to the the 
board meeting, and the first batch of offers were extended to families of 
prospective students entering grades K through 6. Ongoing outreach 
recruitment efforts will continue into the beginning of the new school year. 



       
   

    
    
   
 

  
  

  
  

 
      

  
       
      
     
   
 

   
  

  
 

   
  

   
 

 
   

 
 
 

  
   
 

  
  
  
     

 

5. Other Agenda Items: 
•	 Board Transitions 

The board was notified that board member Dan Cohen would be resigning 
effective after tonight’s board meeting. The board thanked Dan for his many 
years of dedication and service. 

•	 Board Community Forums and Engagement 
The board discussed ways to involve parents/guardians in happenings at the 
school as well as to better familiarize them with board process, and help clarify 
the role of the board. 

6. Action Items: 
•	 Election of Basil Smikle as Interim Board Treasurer 

With the Board Treasurer role now vacant due to Dan Cohen’s departure, the 
board William Allen made a motion to elect Basil Smikle as Board 
Treasurer for the duration of the 2017-2018 school year. Linda Aristondo 
seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

•	 Approval of CMO Agreement Renewal 
After discussing the increase of services provided by Hebrew Public to the 
school, Hebrew Public’s significant history of grant-making to the School, its 
management of the facilities expansion, and the typical range of CMO fees in 
NYC (with 10% being the low end and rates of 12-15% being common), the 
board decided to renew the agreement between the school and the CMO with 
an increased management fee of 10% of the gross revenues for the charter term 
beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2022. As such, William Allen made a 
motion to approve the renewed CMO agreement with Hebrew Public for the 
charter term ending June 30, 2022. Dan Cohen seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously with Sara Bloom abstaining given her role as a Board 
member for Hebrew Public. 

7. PTO Comments 
Tiffany Goldberg briefed the board on the following: 

a.	 Elections were set to take place for new PTO leadership for the upcoming school year. 
b.	 The PTO was working on a “Skate Date” for the entire school at a local skating rink. 
c.	 Teacher appreciation day will take place in May. 
d.	 A Bake Sale is set to take place on April 25th with proceeds going to fund the 5th grade 

stepping up ceremony 



  
 

  
   

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
    

  
 
 

e.	 School class picnics are scheduled to take place in May 
f.	 Coffee Chat with Ramapo for Students and Ms. Lindsay were scheduled to take place on 

April 25th for continued diversity training and Q&A sessions. 
g.	 Another PTO diversity event will take place before the conclusion of the school year 

with a date TBD. 
h.	 Additional meetings will take place during the spring to answer parent/guardian 


questions about middle school.
 

8. Public Comments 
None. 

9. Staff Comments 
None. 

10. Adjournment 
William Allen made a motion to adjourn. Dan Cohen seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 7:51 pm. 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

                                                                       

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

  

  

 
 

 
 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

May 16, 2018
 

6:30 PM
 

147 Saint Nicholas Avenue
 

New York, NY 10026
 

Minutes 

Trustees Present Trustees Absent 

Linda Aristondo William Allen 

Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman Sara Bloom 

Basil Smikle 
Giovanna Delucchi 

Linda Tarry-Chard 
Michael Walrond 

Also Present: 
Mark Fink, Hebrew Public 
Tiffany Goldberg, Co-Chair, PTO 
Shane Goldstein-Smith, Hebrew Public 
Lindsay Malanga, Head of School 



   
   

  
 

  
   

 
 

  

 
 
 

    
  

   
     
   
  
     
     
   
   
   
  
    
   
   

 
    

   
  

  
   

   
 

 
 

  
  

1. Call to Order 
Linda Aristondo called the meeting to order at 6:34 pm and reminded everyone in attendance 
to sign up for public comments if they wished to speak. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 
As quorum was not present, the agenda could not be adopted. The agenda will be adopted at 
the next meeting where there is a quorum. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
As quorum was not present, the minutes could not be approved. The minutes will be approved 
at the next meeting where there is a quorum. 

4. Leadership Update: 
The board was updated as to the following: 

•	 The completion of state testing for both ELA and math. 
•	 The preparation for upcoming NYS science testing for 4th graders. 
•	 Hiring developments for the next school year. 
•	 Summer school preparations. 
•	 Ramapo for Students final workshops for this school year. 
•	 A school visit from Lori Nathanson who is helping with SEL coaching at the school. 
•	 Two more enrollment meetings to take place within the next month. 
•	 Three school vision meetings to also take place within the next month. 
•	 The Israeli Scouts will visit the school on June 7th. 
•	 There will be a fundraising breakfast on June 11. 
•	 June 10-June 22 will have NWEA map testing to track student performance. 
•	 June 8 will be Israel Day at the school. 
•	 June 15 will be Field Day at the school with the grades participating in outdoor 

activities. 
•	 There will be festivities for the graduating 5th grade class including a stepping up, 

ceremony, yearbook, dance and end of year trip. 
•	 The 2018-2019 school year calendar was reviewed and discussed. 

5. Action Items 
As quorum was absent, no action items could be voted on. The action items will be voted on at 
the next meeting where there is a quorum. 

6. PTO Comments 
Tiffany Goldberg briefed the board on the following: 



 
    
   
   
    

 
    
  

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 
 

•	 Elections were held for next year’s PTO leadership. The slate will be introduced shortly. 
•	 The PTO is scheduled to have their final meeting for the year within the coming weeks. 
•	 A pizza party took place and was a huge success. 
•	 A visit to Camp Setoga had to be cancelled due to inclement weather. A reschedule is in 

the works. 
•	 Parents Night Out is scheduled to take place within the next month. 
•	 Family Friday for grades 2-5 is also upcoming. 

7. Public Comments 
None. 

8. Staff Comments 
None. 

9. Adjournment 
Linda Aristondo closed the meeting at 6:57 pm. 



 
 

   
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                                       
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  

Board of Trustees Annual Meeting 

June 13, 2018
 

6:30 PM
 

147 Saint Nicholas Avenue
 

New York, NY 10026
 

Minutes 

Trustees Present Trustees Absent 

William Allen 
Basil Smikle 

Linda Aristondo 

Sara Bloom 
Linda Tarry-Chard 

Giovanna Delucchi* 

Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman Michael Walrond 

*by video conference 
Also Present: 
Meghan Barrios, Incoming Head of School 
Mark Fink, Hebrew Public 
Tiffany Goldberg, Co-Chair, PTO 
Shane Goldstein-Smith, Hebrew Public 
Jon Rosenberg, Hebrew Public 
Elly Rosenthal, Hebrew Public 
8 Community Members 



 
 

  
    

  
 

  
 

  
 

  

 
 

    
 

     
   

   
  
  
  

 
       

   
  

   

 
  

 
  

   
      
     
 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
Linda Aristondo called the meeting to order at 6:31 pm and reminded everyone in attendance 
to sign up for public comments if they wished to speak. 

2. Adoption of Agenda 
Sara Bloom made a motion to adopt the May and June 2018 Board Agenda(s), respectively. 
William Allen seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
William Allen made a motion to approve the April and May 2018 Minutes, respectively. 
Giovanna Delucchi seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Leadership Update: 
The board was updated on the following subjects: 

•	 Incoming Head of School Meghan Barrios was introduced. Ms. Meghan, who has 15 
years of professional experience as an educator and instructional leader, and who 
has spent significant time at Harlem Hebrew, will begin her tenure on July 1st . 

•	 Progress in hiring/staffing for the 2018/19 school year. 
•	 Summer school preparations. 
•	 Friday, June 15 -Field Day at the school with the grades participating in outdoor 

activities. 
•	 Upcoming graduating 5th grade class events including a stepping up, ceremony, 

yearbook, dance and end of year trip. 
•	 June 2018 data dashboard. 

5. Thank you to Giovanna Delucchi and Michael Walrond 
On behalf of the entire board, school and community, Chair, Linda Aristondo thanked 
departing board members, Giovanna Delucchi and Michael Walrond for their years of service 
and wished them well in their future endeavors. 

6. Action Items 
•	 Approval of 2018-2019 School Year Budget 

After a discussion, William Allen made a motion to approve the 2018-19 school 
year budget. Sara Bloom seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 



   
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

   
   

    
    

   
   

    
   

                                   
   

   
   
   

                                          
   

   
   

    
   

   

   

   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
      

•	 Approval of 2018-2019 Recommended Vendor Contracts 
After viewing the chart and discussing the services, Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman 
made a motion to approve the following vendor contracts as recommended by 
the finance and audit committee for the 2018-2019 school year: 

HARLEM HEBREW
 
VENDOR LIST
 
2018/2019
 

Name Cost DESCRIPTION 
CSBM $57,500 Accounting Services 
MMB $19,000 Auditor 
Chess NYC $40,000 Chess 
Heinemann $16,000 Curriculum 
Steps to Literacy $14,000 Curriculum 
Attanasio $1,400 Curriculum 
Houghton Mifflin Harcourt $ 21,000 Curriculum 
Eureka Math $24,550 Curriculum 
Launchbox $8,770 Curriculum 
Amplify $46,750 Curriculum 
Pearson $10,040 Curriculum 
Fundations Materials $1,450    Curriculum 
TBM $236,700 Custodial Maintenance 
Think Cerca $13,400 Education Consultant 
Wilson Fundations $11,925 Education Consultant 
Regina Caterers $240,110 Food Service 
Austin and Co, $53,500 Insurance 
Global 365 $50,400 IT Vendor 

FOHLA (Sublease) $2,207,700 Rent [incl Summer Space] 

City Investigations $102,870 Security Services 

1635 Education $14,280 Staff Development 
IB $12,500 Staff Development 
Lavinia Group $60,180 Staff Development 
NWEA $10,645 Student Assessments 
Powerschool $6,500 Student Management System 
MeasuerEd $9,680 Student Management System Consultant 

School Mint $6,400 Student Recruitment Platform 
CDW $35,000 Student Technology - Chromebooks 



     
   

                   
 
 

   
 

 
  
  
  
   

 
    

 
 

 
   

  
  

 
 

  

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 

Apple $20,000 Student Technology - Ipads and Carts 
Consolidated $122,000 Student Transportation [incl Bronx] 

Rodriguez Valle Creative $3,000 Website Maintenance 

•	 Election of Officers for the 2018-2019 School Year 
After a discussion, Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman made a motion to approve the 
following slate of officers as recommended by the governance committee for the 
2018-2019 school year: 

o	 Linda Aristondo, Chair 
o	 Sara Berman, Vice-Chair 
o	 Basil Smikle, Treasurer 
o	 William Allen, Secretary 

Giovanna Delucchi seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

•	 Renewal of Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman’s term as Parent Board Member, Ex-
Officio 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to renew Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman’s term 
as Parent Board Member, Ex-Officio for the 2018-2019 school year. William 
Allen seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

•	 Ratification of the executive committee’s approval of the proposed 2018-2019 
School Year Calendar 
After reviewing the calendar, Sara Bloom made a motion to ratify the executive 
committee’s approval of the proposed 2018-2019 Board Calendar. Linda 
Aristondo seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

•	 Approval of the 2018-2019 Board Calendar 
After a brief discussion, William Allen made a motion to approve the 2018-2019 
Board Calendar. Vanessa Goldberg-Drossman seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

•	 Approval of Second Amended and Restated Sublease Between FOHLA and 
Harlem Hebrew. 
Following a briefing and explanation of the amendments, Sara Bloom made a 
motion to approve the second amended and restated sublease between Friends 
of Hebrew Language Academy (“FOHLA”) and Harlem Hebrew. Giovanna 
Delucchi seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 



 
  

  
 

  
   

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

  
  

 

7. Public Comments 
1 community member asked about the steps that were being taken to build and improve school
 
culture.
 
1 community member asked about school leadership and continuity especially as it relates to
 
the 5th graders as they prepare to enter the middle school for the upcoming year.
 
1 community member mentioned suspension rates and asked about efforts to improve them.
 
1 community member asked about social workers in the school and stressed the need to
 
always assume the best of people and view all input as coming from a good place.
 
1 community member asked about the efforts that the school was making to recruit more 

diverse teachers/staff.
 

8. Staff Comments 
None. 

9. Adjournment 
Linda Aristondo made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:58 pm. Vanessa Goldberg-
Drossman seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 
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@BEFGFMJEHAFFGGHEJGEFFRED@JFEHJRF@ 
EANEDHA@JDC7JFMF@@E@(DEJ<7:8J1J:=UJEGKRGJHI
.FDMENJ.EQDET//@JIGIGEEEJV1JWJ@EFGGHE@JTEDE
DC7J@EFGGHE@UJFHSGFAKRGJQVJFJKEEEDFMJ@GAHGE@ 

mailto:NHHEDEJ.EQDETJBDHKDFNUJE'EDVJ@GAHEEGJG@JF
mailto:EHESL??/@JFMMJMEFDEJNHHEDEJ.EQDETUJGVBGFFMMV
mailto:EFFRJ.FDMENJ.EQDETJRHNEDHHNJRF@J<SC
mailto:3HHGGGHEFMMVUJ.FDMENJ.EQDETJG@JHIIEDGEKJIDEE
mailto:NHHEDEJ.EQDETJBDHKDFNUJE'EDVJ@GAHEEGJG@JF
mailto:EHESL??/@JFMMJMEFDEJNHHEDEJ.EQDETUJGVBGFFMMV
mailto:EFFRJ.FDMENJ.EQDETJRHNEDHHNJRF@J<SC


HG@FQGMGGGE@UJ..JENBMHVEE@JIAMMSGGNEJDEFHGEK 
GEFFREDUJFJIAMMJGGNEJ@HFGFMJTHD*EDUJFEHJFJIAMMS 
GGNEJFHHDHGEFGHDJHIJ@GAHEEGJ@ABBHDGJ@ED'GFE@U 
TRHJG@JHEJGRJEMEFHED@RGBJGEFN(JDEJFHHGGGHEU
TEJENBMHVJ@BEFGFMJEHAFFGGHEJGEFFRED@JFEH 
RF'EJDC7JFMF@@E@(DEJ<7:;J1J:8UJIG'EJHIJ../@
IHADGEEEJV1JIHADJ@EFGGHE@JTF@JFEJDC7J@EFGGHEU 
FHSGFAKRGJQVJFJKEEEDFMJ@GAHGE@JFEHJ@BEFGFM 
EHAFFGGHEJGEFFRED(J3MHEKJTGGRJGREJ.EQDET
GEFFREDJGEJEFFRJFMF@@DHHNUJGRG@J@GFIIGEK OGAHEEG NHHEMJEE@ADE@JGRFGJFMMJFMF@@DHHN@JRF'EJ<SC @JTGGR GEFFRED@(7RG@JG@JGEFDEHGQMEJ@NFMMJ@GAHEEGIPG@FQGMGG GEFFREDJDFGGHJEEFQME@JFMH@EJ@GAHEEG1JGEFFRED GE@ DEMFGGHE@RGB@UJHGIIEDEEGGFGEHJGE@GDAFGGHEJIHD 
GEHG'GHAFMJ@GAHEEG@JFEHJ@NFMMJKDHAB@UJFEH 
BA@RJGE9BAMMJHAGJGE@GDAFGGHE(J3MMJ@GAHEEG@
DEFEG'EJ@ABBHDGJGEJGREJMEF@GJDE@GDGFGG'E 
EE'GDHENEEGJFEHJTEJBDEIEDJBA@RSGE@JGHJBAMMS 
HAG@JTREEJBH@@GQME(JDEJFHHGGGHEJ..JFHEGDFFG@
TGGRJHFFABFGGHEFMUJBRV@GFFMUJFEHJ@BEEFR 
GREDFBG@G@JF@JEEFE@@FDV(0EJRF'EJFJDHQA@G
JE@BHE@EJGHJDEGED'EEGGHEXJ7D-JBHMGFVJFEH 
THD*JFMH@EMVJTGGRJGREJCRGMHJOGAHVJ7EFNJGH 
EE@ADEJGRFGJ@GAHEEG@JDEFEG'EJEEFE@@FDV 
@ABBHDG@JFEHJDENFGEJGEJGREJMEF@GJDE@GDGFGG'E 
EE'GDHENEEG 

FEHJ@BEFGFMJEHAFFGGHEJGEFFRED(J3MHEKJTGGRJGRE
.EQDETJGEFFREDJGEJEFFRJFMF@@DHHNUJGRG@ 
@GFIIGEKJNHHEMJEE@ADE@JGRFGJFMMJFMF@@DHHN@ 
RF'EJ<SCJGEFFRED@(J7RG@JG@JFEJGEFDEHGQMVJ@NFMM
@GAHEEGJGHJGEFFREDJDFGGHJTRFGRJEEFQME@JFMH@E 
@GAHEEG1JGEFFREDJDEMFGGHE@RGB@UJHGIIEDEEGGFGEH 
GE@GDAFGGHEJIHDJGEHG'GHAFMJ@GAHEEG@JFEHJ@NFMM 
KDHAB@UJFEHJBA@RJGE9BAMMJHAGJGE@GDAFGGHE(
3HHGGGHEFMMVUJ.EQDETJ,AQMGFUJ.FDMENJ.EQDET/@
NFEFKENEEGJHDKFEG4FGGHEJRF@JRGDEHJFJIAMM 
GGNEJPGDEFGHDJHIJOHFGFMJLNHGGHEFMJ?EFDEGEKJGH 
REMBJNEEGJGREJEEEH@JHIJFMMJMEFDEED@JGEJGRE 
QAGMHGEKJGEFMAHGEKJ@GAHEEG@JTGGRJHG@FQGMGGGE@(
3M@HUJQEKGEEGEKJMF@GJVEFDJFEHJFHEGGEAGEKJGEGH 
GREJ:=S:+J@FRHHMJVEFDUJ.FDMENJ.EQDETJQEKFE 
THD*GEKJTGGRJFHE@AGFEG@JIDHNJJFNFBHJIHD 
CRGMHDEEJTRHJBDHNHGEJBH@GGG'EJQERF'GHDU 
IH@GEDJ@HFGFMJFEHJENHGGHEFMJ@*GMM 
HE'EMHBNEEGUJFEHJFDEFGEJ@FIEJFHNNAEGGGE@ 
NFD*EHJQVJQEMHEKGEKJFEHJFHEEEFGEHEE@@(
7REJJFNFBHJ3BBDHFFRJFHE@G@G@JHIJFJGHHMQH2 
HIJ@GDFGEKGE@JFEHJGEFREGUAE@UJFHE'EVEH 
GRDHAKRJFJHG@GGEFGJFHFFRGEKJNHHEMUJGRFG 
@ABBHDGJGREJFDEFGGHEJHIJ@AFFE@@IAMJMEFDEGEK 
EE'GDHENEEG@JIHDJFMM(JNGEFMMVUJFMMJ@GAHEEG@
DEFEG'EJ@ABBHDGJGEJGREJMEF@GJDE@GDGFGG'E 
EE'GDHENEEGJFEHJTEJBDEIEDJBA@RSGE@JGHJBAMMS 
HAG@JTREEJBH@@GQME(JDEJFHHGGGHEJ..JFHEGDFFG@
TGGRJHFFABFGGHEFMUJBRV@GFFMUJFEHJ@BEEFR 
GREDFBG@G@JF@JEEFE@@FDV(0EJRF'EJFJDHQA@G
JE@BHE@EJGHJDEGED'EEGGHEXJ7D-JBHMGFVJFEH 
THD*JFMH@EMVJTGGRJGREJCRGMHJOGAHVJ7EFNJGH 
EE@ADEJGRFGJ@GAHEEG@JDEFEG'EJEEFE@@FDV 
@ABBHDG@JFEHJDENFGEJGEJGREJMEF@GJDE@GDGFGG'E 
EE'GDHENEEG 
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EFGHIJKKJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJNFVJWVQXFXOGHNGPH 
WGGHXGXPF 
CDEFGEHIJ789:;9<7:=J>J?F@GJABHFGEHIJ7=97:9<7:= 

CEBDDGJEFFGHE@JIGJGEFEFEDJFGHJFHJIGI@GDFGDDJ@GFKKIGHL 

YFOGHZTGXPFOJ[PHJTPQ\MSGXF]JGUSJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJNFVJWVQXFXOGHNGPHJWGGHXGXPFJRN^MSO 

LUNHGSHJOTUPPMOJQZOGJTPQ\MSGSJGUSJGN^MSOJGXGMSVJ_`Kab_`KcJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJNFV 

WVQXFXOGHNGPHJWGGHXGXPFJGPJHS\PHGJTUNF]SOJXFJGSNTUSHJNFVJNVQXFXOGHNGPHJOGN[[XF] 

VZHXF]JGUSJ_`Kab_`KcJOTUPPMJISNHdJeMSNOSJ\HPfXVSJGUSJ[ZMMJGXQSJSgZXfNMSFGJhiREjJP[ 
OGN[[JPFJkZFSJl`mJ_`KanJGUSJiREJ[PHJNFIJVS\NHGSVJOGN[[J[HPQJkZMIJKmJ_`KaJGUHPZ]UJkZFS 

l`mJ_`KcnJGUSJiREJ[PHJNVVSVJOGN[[J[HPQJkZMIJKmJ_`KaJGUHPZ]UJkZFSJl`mJ_`KcnJNFVJGUS 

iREJP[JOGN[[JNVVSVJXFJFSoMIJTHSNGSVJ\POXGXPFOJ[HPQJkZMIJKmJ_`KaJGUHPZ]UJkZFSJl`mJ_`Kc 

ZOXF]JGUSJGN^MSOJ\HPfXVSVd 

KdJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJWGGHXGXPFJRN^MS 

MNOJCPF@@DDDJ 
NEFEFED@JDG 
;9Q79:8 

ZQ 

MNOJCPF@@DDDJ 
NEFEFED@ 
REBFDGEHJ89:9:8 
SJ;9Q79:= 

[ 

_dJWVQXFXOGHNGPHJePOXGXPFJWGGHXGXPFJRN^MS
 

MNO 
VHJIGI@GDFGI6E 
UD@IGIDG@JDG 
;9Q79:8 

<: 

MNO 
VHJIGI@GDFGDD@ 
REBFDGEHJ89:9:8 
SJ;9Q79:= 

Z 

MNOJCPF@@DDDJ 
NEFEFED@JMIPPIGH 
TFEFGGJUD@IGIDG@ 
89:9:8JSJ;9Q79:= 

7 

MNO 
VHJIGI@GDFGDD@ 
MIPPIGHJTFEFGG 
UD@IGIDG@J89:9:8 
SJ;9Q79:= 

7 

MNOJCPF@@DDDJ 
NEFEFED@JVHHEH 
IGJWEXJUD@IGIDG@ 
89:9:8JYJ;9Q79:= 

< 

MNO 
VHJIGI@GDFGDD@ 
VHHEHJIGJWEX 
UD@IGIDG@J89:9:8 
YJ;9Q79:= 

< 

MNOJDK 
CPF@@DDDJ 
NEFEFED@JDG 
;9Q7:= 

\Z 

MNO 
VHJIGI@GDFGI6E 
UD@IGIDG@JDG 
;9Q79:= 

:[ 
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ldJRSMMJIPZHJOTUPPMpOJOGPHI 

LUNHGSHJOTUPPMOJQNIJ\HPfXVSJNVVXGXPFNMJXF[PHQNGXPFJXFJGUXOJOSTGXPFJP[JGUSJWFFZNM 
qS\PHGJN^PZGJGUSXHJHSO\STGXfSJGSNTUSHJNFVJNVQXFXOGHNGPHJNGGHXGXPFJHNGSOJNOJOPQS 

GSNTUSHJPHJNVQXFXOGHNGPHJVS\NHGZHSOJVPJFPGJHS[MSTGJNVfNFTSQSFGJPHJQPfSQSFGJoXGUXF 

GUSJTUNHGSHJOTUPPMJFSGoPHrOdJsTUPPMOJQNIJ\HPfXVSJNVVXGXPFNMJVSGNXMJGPJHS[MSTGJN 

GSNTUSHtOJNVfNFTSQSFGJZ\JGUSJMNVVSHJGPJNJMSNVSHOUX\J\POXGXPFJoXGUXFJGUSJFSGoPHrJPH 
NFJNVQXFXOGHNGPHtOJQPfSQSFGJGPJMSNVJNJFSoJFSGoPHrJTUNHGSHJOTUPPMd 
J 

7WDJDE@BDG@E8 

udJLUNHGSHJOTUPPMOJQZOGJSFOZHSJGUNGJNMMJ\HPO\STGXfSJSQ\MPISSOJHSTSXfSJTMSNHNFTS 

GUHPZ]UJGUSJvwsExJy[[XTSJP[JsTUPPMJeSHOPFFSMJqSfXSoJNFVJWTTPZFGN^XMXGIJhyseqWj 
\HXPHJGPJSQ\MPIQSFGdJW[GSHJNFJSQ\MPISSJUNOJ^SSFJTMSNHSVmJOTUPPMOJNHSJHSgZXHSVJGP 

QNXFGNXFJ\HPP[JP[JOZTUJTMSNHNFTSJXFJGUSJ[XMSJP[JSNTUJSQ\MPISSdJiPHJGUSJON[SGIJP[JNMM 
OGZVSFGOmJTUNHGSHJOTUPPMOJQZOGJGNrSJXQQSVXNGSJOGS\OJGPJGSHQXFNGSJGUSJSQ\MPIQSFGJP[ 
XFVXfXVZNMOJoUPJUNfSJ^SSFJVSFXSVJTMSNHNFTSdJyFTSJGUSJSQ\MPISSOJUNfSJ^SSF 

GSHQXFNGSVmJGUSJOTUPPMJQZOGJGSHQXFNGSJGUSJHSgZSOGJ[PHJTMSNHNFTSJXFJGUSJREWLz 

OIOGSQdJJ 
J 
zNfSJNMMJSQ\MPISSOJUNfSJ^SSFJTMSNHSVJGUHPZ]UJGUSJvwsExJREWLzJOIOGSQ{ 

J 

•E@ 

|dJiPHJ\SHO\STGXfSJPHJTZHHSFGJSQ\MPISSOJoUPOSJTMSNHNFTSJUNOJ^SSFJVSFXSVmJUNfSJIPZ 

GSHQXFNGSVJGUSXHJSQ\MPIQSFGJNFVJHSQPfSVJGUSQJ[HPQJGUSJREWLzJOIOGSQ{ 

WDGJVBBPIEF–PE 

RUNFrJIPZ 
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EFGHIJKLJMFNOHGPQPORJSOTNUOHV
 
LMNOPQRSMOpSqPrstrutvrus 

WSEJXYZFGJYQJ[\\JSOTNUOHV 

]XOHGPQPORJTFRJMFNOHGPQPOR^JTVJYQ 

_`ab`Kc 

wx 

WSEJXYZFGJYQJ[\\JXOHGPQPOR 

SOTNUOHVJTVJYQJ_`ab`Kc 

vy 

dFVGHZNGPYFVJQYHJeOfYHGPFgJhOHNOFGJYQJMFNOHGPQPORJSOTNUOHV 

SUOJGTi\OJiO\YjJPVJHOQ\ONGPkOJYQJGUOJPFQYHlTGPYFJNY\\ONGORJGUHYZgUJGUOJYF\PFOJfYHGT\JQYH 

NYlf\PTFNOJjPGUJ/OjJ0YH1J2GTGOJERZNTGPYFJ3TjJLc,-]a^]T.K^JQYHJGOTNUPFgJVGTQQ 

/ZT\PQPNTGPYFV0JEFGOHJGUOJHO\OkTFGJQZ\\JGPlOJO/ZPkT\OFGJ]WSE^JNYZFGJYQJGOTNUOHVJPFJOTNU 

NY\ZlF0JWYHJO1Tlf\O2JTJVNUYY\JjPGUJLbJQZ\\JGPlOJGOTNUOHVJTFRJ,JUT\QJGPlOJGOTNUOHV 

jYZ\RJUTkOJTFJWSEJNYZFGJYQJLL0,0JdQJlYHOJGUTFJYFOJNY\ZlFJTff\POVJGYJTJfTHGPNZ\TH 

GOTNUOH2Jf\OTVOJVO\ONGJYFOJNY\ZlFJQYHJGUOJWSEJNYZFG0Jh\OTVOJRYJFYGJPFN\ZRO 

fTHTfHYQOVVPYFT\V2JVZNUJTVJGOTNUOHJTVVPVGTFGV0 

WSEJNYZFGJYQJZFNOHGPQPORJGOTNUOHVJYFJ_`ab`Kc2JTFRJOTNUJZFNOHGPQPORJGOTNUOHJVUYZ\RJiO 

NYZFGORJYF\IJYFNO0 

u�P{~OM�Pz{|P�~Q�OP~�PQ��p�O���pSPOpM��p�NP���yr�us� 

v�Pz{|P�~Q�OP~�PQ��p�O���pSPOpM��p�NP��O�PMOP�pMNOPO��ppP�pM�N
~�Pp�p�p�OM���P��SS�pP~�PNp�~�SM��P��MNN�~~�POpM����-
pyRp��p��pP���yr�us� 

y�Pz{|P�~Q�OP~�PQ��p�O���pSPOpM��p�NP��~PM�pPOp�Q�pSP~�

Op�Q�pPO�M�zP�~��p-pP�M�Q�O�P���yr�us�
 

x�Pz{|P�~Q�OP~�PQ��p�O���pSPOpM��p�NP��O�PO�~P�pM�NP~�P{pM��
�~�P{�p���MPpyRp��p��pP���yr�us� 

w�Pz{|P�~Q�OP~�PQ��p�O���pSPOpM��p�NP��O�Ppy�pRO�~�M�

|QN��pNN�PR�~�pNN�~�M��PM�O�NO���PMO��pO���P~�P����OM��

pyRp��p��pP���yr�us�
 

��Pz{|P�~Q�OP~�PQ��p�O���pSPOpM��p�NP��~PS~P�~OP��OP��O~PM��
~�PO�pPR��~�P�~Q�P�MOp-~��pNP���yr�us� 

SUTF1JIYZ0 

z{|P}~Q�O 

wx 

us 

r 

r 

yw 

u
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2018-2019 HEBREW PUBLIC ACADEMIC CALENDAR
OCTOBER

10/8 Columbus Day (schools closed) 
10/9 Full Day MAP PD (students do not 

                 attend, staff PD)

1 2 3 4 5

8 9 10 11 12

15 16 17 18 19

22 23 24 25 26

29 30 31

FEBRUARY

2/7 Half Day 12 Dismissal (students)

                 Parent Teacher Conferences

2/18-2/22 Midwinter Break (schools closed)

1

4 5 6 7 8

11 12 13 14 15

18 19 20 21 22

25 26 27 28

JUNE

6/3-6/28 Spring MAP Fluency (K-2)

6/3-6/7 NYS Science Written Test (4th/8th grade)

6/10-6/21 Spring MAP Testing 
6/26 Half Day 12 Dismissal (students)

6/27 Half Day 12 Dismissal (students)

6/28 Half Day 12 Dismissal (students)

                     Last Day of School

3 4 5 6 7

10 11 12 13 14

17 18 19 20 21

24 25 26 27 28

DECEMBER

12/10-12/21   Winter MAP Testing

12/24-1/1      Winter Break (schools closed) 

3 4 5 6 7

10 11 12 13 14

17 18 19 20 21

24 25 26 27 28

31

APRIL

4/1-4/11 NYS CBT ELA Test

4/8 Quarter 4 Begins (4/8-6/14) 
4/8-5/17 NYSESLAT Speaking Test

4/17 Half Day 12 Dismissal (students)

                    Parent Teacher Conferences as Needed

4/19-4/26 Spring Break (schools closed) 
4/30-5/10 NYS CBT Math Test

1 2 3 4 5

8 9 10 11 12

15 16 17 18 19

22 23 24 25 26

29 30

9/4 First Day of School 

9/4 Quarter 1 Begins (9/4-11/9)

9/4-9/28 Fall MAP Fluency (K-2)

9/10-9/11 Rosh Hashanah (schools closed) 
9/12-9/28 Fall MAP Testing

9/19 Yom Kippur (schools closed) 

SEPTEMBER
3 4 5 6 7

10 11 12 13 14

17 18 19 20 21

24 25 26 27 28

5/6-5/17 NYSESLAT Listening, Reading, Writing Test

5/22-5/31 NYS Science Performance Test (4th/8th grade)

5/24 Half Day 12 Dismissal (students & staff)

5/27 Memorial Day (schools closed)

MAY

1/2 – 1/31 Winter MAP Fluency (K-2)

1/11 Full Day MAP PD (students do not attend,   

                     staff PD)

1/21 MLK Day (schools closed) 
1/28 Quarter 3 Begins (1/28-4/5)

JANUARY
1 2 3 4

7 8 9 10 11

14 15 16 17 18

21 22 23 24 25

28 29 30 31

1 2 3

6 7 8 9 10

13 14 15 16 17

20 21 22 23 24

27 28 29 30 31

11/5             Quarter 2 Begins (11/13-1/25) 

11/6   Half Day 12 Dismissal (students & staff) 

                     Election Day 
11/12   Veterans Day (schools closed)

11/15    Half Day 12 Dismissal (students)

                      Parent Teacher Conferences

11/21   Half Day 12 Dismissal (students & staff)

                     Fall Celebration

11/22-11/23 Thanksgiving Break (schools closed)

NOVEMBER
1 2

5 6 7 8 9

12 13 14 15 16

19 20 21 22 23

26 27 28 29 30

3/15 Half Day 12 Dismissal (students & staff)

MARCH
1

4 5 6 7 8

11 12 13 14 15

18 19 20 21 22

25 26 27 28 29

First/last day of school

Schools closed

Students do not attend, staff PD

Half day
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